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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG

LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

ERBMEXZHMARLT ([BXF]) GEMNES

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks
of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally
small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to
high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a
liguid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Shanxi Changcheng
Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of
giving information with regard to the Company. The directors
of the Company, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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| am honored to serve as the Chairman of the board of
directors (the “Board”) of the Company.

The Board and the management team will strive to
comprehensively improve the Group’s operations, production,
research & development and market development capabilities
in order to enhance corporate value and financial performance.
Despite the difficult operating environment, the Group's
production and sales have increased significantly in 2023,
thanks to the every effort made by the Board and management
of the Group to develop core businesses and improve efficiency
and productivity. The Group strives to reinforce its strength and
advantages and fully realize its potential to seek for the best
performance. At the same time, the Board continues to reduce
operating costs and improve product quality, with a view to
restoring profit growth.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all employees for their contributions and to
shareholders and investors for their support.

Wu Bo
Chairman

Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province, the PRC
30 April 2024
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

Business Review
Business of the Group

Since the listing of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) on GEM of the Stock Exchange in
2004, the Group has been engaging in the design, research,
development, manufacture and sale of image transmission
fiber optic products as its principal business. Image
transmission fiber optics products manufactured by the Group
are image transmission devices containing a rigidly bundle of
optical fibers arranged in an ordered fashion so that images
can be transmitted from one end of the optical fiber bundle
and displayed on the other end of the bundle. A typical image
transmission fiber optic product of the Group would consist of
over 10 million optical fibers.

At present, the Group produces five main products, including
fiber optic inverters, fiber optic straight plates, fiber optic face
plates, fiber optic tapers and microchannel plates. Although
fiber-optic imaging devices (fiber optic inverters, fiber optic
face plates, fiber optic tapers and microchannel plates)
have been increasingly used in medical imaging equipment,
digital photography, physics, biochemistry and other civilian
applications in recent years, they are currently mainly used in
military low-light night vision devices and military low-light
night vision video systems. Its customers are mainly located at
China, Russia and the other European countries.

Image Transmission Fiber Optic Production
Improvement Measures and Technology Upgrade

The Group continues to implement various measures
(the "Operational Measures”) to improve the business
capabilities of the Group.

In view of the image transmission fiber optic production
technology upgrade, the Group received a subsidy from the
industrial transformation and upgrading fund in the amount
of RMB20,000,000 (the “ITU Fund”) from the government
of Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province on 26 December 2018,
which specifically supports the industrial transformation and
upgrading and technological transformation project of the
Group.

Following the outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic in early
2020, the Group failed to complete its refinancing exercises
as scheduled, which forced the Group to suspend its technical
upgrading and transformation projects. During the year,
the Group will restart its refinancing initiatives and the
technical upgrading and transformation projects as and when
appropriate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Position and Going Concern Issue

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately RMB153,328,000 and
RMB108,301,000 respectively. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore the Group may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.

To improve the financial position of the Group, the directors of
the Company have implemented, including but not limited to,
the following measures (the “Financial Measures”):

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

at capital level:

Introducing new strategic investors into the private
placement of new shares/bonds, and negotiating
and implementing capital operation proposals with
shareholders and potential investment institutions;

at the operational level:

Revitalizing the long-term assets and planning to
lease out the properties temporarily not used in the
Company’s business operations, so as to increase
the property income; developing new products for
extending the downstream of the industrial chain and
strengthening the existing sales forces and introducing
more capable strategic sales agencies;, and taking the
advantage of the technological advantages accumulated
by the Company in the field of military products to
expand into the field of civilian products and increase
new customers and income sources; and

in respect of liabilities:

Negotiating and implementing loan interest reduction/
exemption schemes with shareholders and borrowers
and seeking financial support from substantial
shareholders and borrowers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

Details of the implemented Financial Measures are as follows:

In the fourth quarter of 2022, the Company entered
into a revised loan agreement with Taiyuan Changcheng
Optics Electronics Industrial Company Limited (“Taiyuan
Changcheng”), a substantial shareholder of the Company,
pursuant to which Taiyuan Changcheng has agreed to
extend the term of existing loan to the Company in the
principal amount of RMB14,600,000 to 31 December 2026,
commencing from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2026,
and delay the payment of interest for the years ended 31
December 2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025 to 2026. In the fourth
quarter of 2022, the Company entered into revised loan
agreements with two other borrowers, pursuant to which two
other borrowers have agreed to extend the term of existing
loans to the Company to 31 December 2026, and delay the
payment of interest for the years ended 31 December 2023,
2024 and 2025 to 2026.

One other borrower offers waiver of interest payable from the
date of first loan to 31 March 2023, and delays the payment
of interest for the period from 1 April 2023 to 31 December
2023, and the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2025 to
2026. The above amendments to the terms of the loans are
collectively referred to as (the “Loan Amendments”).

In 31 December 2023, the Group’s outstanding bank
borrowing is in the amount of RMB6,020,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Review

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue of
the Group was approximately RMB26,717,000 (2022:
RMB15,535,000), representing an increase of approximately
71.98% as compared to the corresponding financial period in
2022. The production and sales volume of the Group increased
significantly for the year ended 31 December 2023, and the
sales increased accordingly.

Due to changes in objective factors for the year, some orders
were changed during execution. After reaching a consensus
with customers, the execution of unfinished orders was
postponed. Therefore, although the sales revenue in 2023
increased as compared with the previous period, there was a
gap with the estimate for the current period.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the cost of sale
of the Group was approximately RMB14,333,000 (2022:
RMB9,578,000), representing an increase of approximately
49.65% as compared to that of the last financial year. The
increase was mainly due to the increase in sales revenue and
corresponding increase in cost of sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, The gross profit margin
of the Group was 46.35% (2022: 38.35%). The market
prices of the Group's products increased in 2023 as compared
with the previous year. At the same time, amid the complex
COVID-19 epidemic situation, thanks to the Group's endeavors
to eliminate the adverse effects, the comprehensive pass rate
of products also increased significantly. Therefore, the gross
profit margin in 2023 recorded a significant increase.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded
other income, gains and losses amounting to approximately
RMB8,401,000 (2022: RMB35,481,000), representing a
significant decrease of approximately RMB27,080,000 as
compared to the corresponding financial period in 2022. The
decrease was mainly due to the one-off waiver of interest
on borrowings granted by one other borrower included
in the other income in 2022 and fair value gains on other
borrowings. The details of other income, gains and losses are
set out in note (10) to the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded
administrative and other operating expenses of approximately
RMB23,802,000 (2022: RMB23,696,000 as restated),
representing an increase of approximately RMB106,000 as
compared to the corresponding financial period in 2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recorded
finance costs of approximately RMB8,932,000 (2022:
RMB8,293,000), representing an increase of approximately
RMB639,000 as compared to the corresponding financial
period in 2022. The details of finance costs are set out in note
(11) to the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the loss after tax of
the Group was approximately RMB10,375,000 (2022: profit of
RMB7,207,000 as restated).

Connected Transactions and Financial Assistance from
Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and Connected
Persons

The Group obtained financial assistance from Taiyuan
Changcheng, a substantial shareholder of the Company. As at
31 December 2023, the amount due to Taiyuan Changcheng
was approximately RMB22,100,000 (2022: RMB20,335,000).

The Group obtained financial assistance from Beijing Gensir, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December
2023, the amount due to Beijing Gensir was approximately
RMB1,313,000 (2022: RMB549,000).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group obtained financial assistance from two
connected persons (the “Connected Persons”). As at 31
December 2023, the amount due to Connected Persons was
approximately RMB733,000 (2022: RMB709,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, total interest charged
by Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and Connected Persons
was approximately RMB1,465,000 (2022: RMB1,298,000),
RMB29,000 (2022: RMB16,000) and RMB24,000 (2022:
RMB18,000) respectively. The directors of the Company
consider that the interest charged by Taiyuan Changcheng,
Beijing Gensir and Connected Persons are based on normal
commercial terms or better. The financial assistances and
interest expenses are exempted from connected transaction
requirements.

Bank and Other Borrowings

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had an outstanding
bank borrowing in the amount of RMB6,020,000 (2022:
RMB10,581,000). The term of the bank borrowing has been
extended to 30 June 2024.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had outstanding other
borrowings in the amount of approximately RMB64,768,000
(2022: RMB58,016,000), including non-current portion of
approximately RMB59,024,000 (2022: RMB52,545,000)
and current portion of approximately RMB5,744,000 (2022:
RMB5,471,000).

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2023, the total assets of the Group
increased by approximately RMB21,022,000 to approximately
RMB171,670,000 as compared to approximately
RMB150,648,000 as at the end of the previous financial
period, representing an increase of approximately 13.95%.

As at 31 December 2023, the total liabilities of the
Group increased by approximately RMB31,397,000 to
approximately RMB279,971,000 as compared to approximately
RMB248,574,000 as at the end of the previous financial
period, representing an increase of approximately 12.63%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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As at 31 December 2023, the total deficit on equity of
the Group decreased by approximately RMB10,375,000 to
approximately RMB108,301,000 as compared to approximately
RMB97,926,000 as at the end of the previous financial period.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2023, the gearing ratio (defined as net
debt divided by total share capital plus net debt) of the Group
was approximately 173% (2022: 178%).

Significant Investment Held

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held interests in
associates with the carrying value of RMB Nil (2022: RMB Nil).

Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries

The Group had no acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2023, certain buildings at carrying amount
of approximately RMB41,501,000 (2022: RMB42,929,000)
were pledged to secure a bank borrowing to the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s right-of-use assets
located at No. 7 Dianzi Street, Demonstration Zone, Shanxi,
the PRC was pledged to secure a bank borrowing to the
Group.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no contingent
liabilities.

Exposure of Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets, and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currency of the
Group.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Employee Information

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had approximately 320
full-time employees. The Group remunerates its employees
based on their experience, performance and value, which they
contribute to the Group.

Additional Information Relating to the Disclaimer of
Opinion

The auditors of the Company issued disclaimer of opinion in
the independent auditors’ report relating to the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023. In view of removing the disclaimer
of opinion, the Board will formulate and consider the following
action plan:

(i) The management will continue to strengthen and
implement financial measures and operational measures
to ensure that the Group’s operation be able to recover
rapidly;

(ii) The management begins to prepare for fundraising
plans, such as equity financing and debt restructuring;
and

Events After the Reporting Period

As the impact of the epidemic gradually diminishes in 2023,
the Company intends to consider the following measures to
improve its financial condition that the Company is actively
considering raising funds through private placement, in an
aim to optimise its capital structure through a two-pronged
approach, with active efforts to promote the implementation
of the technical transformation program. Based on the
proposed strategic measures, the Company has reasons to
believe that the financial performance will show further
improvement in the foreseeable future.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES ESREAREBAEBZBEBESE

Executive Directors

Mr. Song Zhenglai (“Mr. ZL Song”), aged 48, holds a
college degree in accounting from the School of Economics
and Management of Changchun University. Mr. ZL Song was
appointed as an executive director and the vice-chairman of
the board of directors of the Company on 30 November 2017.
Mr. ZL Song was appointed as the chairman and a member
of the nomination committee, the compliance officer and
the authorized representative of the Company on 15 January
2020 and ceased to be the chairman and a member of the
nomination committee on 16 February 2020 and resigned as
the financial controller of the Company on 11 January 2020.

Mr. ZL Song served as the chief financial officer of Changchun
Changling Engine Company Limited from March 2002 to
September 2004, the finance director of Shenzhen Zhonghang
Night Vision Technology Limited from May 2006 to March
2009 and the general manager of Changchun Faw Automotive
Chassis Limited Company from May 2010 to January 2014.

Mr. Jiao Baoguo (“Mr. Jiao"), aged 57, graduated from the
Dalian University of Technology and holds a master's degree in
engineering. Mr. Jiao was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 26 March 2019. Mr. Jiao acted as the general
manager of the Company effective from 4 February 2019
and resigned as the general manager of the Company on 11
January 2020.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Jiao was the deputy general
manager of Taiyuan Dongshan Coal Mine and Electricity Group
Co., Limited and the chairman and general manager of Shanxi
Zhihengcheng Technology Co., Limited. Mr. Jiao is currently the
party secretary and chairman of Taiyuan Changcheng Optics
Electronics Industrial Company Limited. Mr. Jiao has won the
second prize of the Shanxi Provincial Science and Technology
Award and the Shanxi Provincial Science and Technology
“Golden Bull Award”. Mr. Jiao has led the team to obtain four
utility model patents, two software copyrights, one appearance
patent and one trademark right, and independently developed
a miniature ECG recorder.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES ESEREAREBAEBZBEBESE

Ms. Wang Lingling (“Ms. Wang”), aged 59, holds a
bachelor’s degree in optoelectronic from the Department of
Physics of Shanxi University and a doctoral degree in material
physics and chemistry from the Changchun University of
Science and Technology. Ms. Wang was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 30 November 2017. Ms.
Wang is currently the vice general manager of technical quality
and the chief engineer of the Company.

Ms. Wang served as the craftsman in the optical fiber plant
of Taiyuan Changcheng Optoelectronics Microlight Equipment
Factory from July 1988 to December 1995, the chief of section
of Taiyuan Changcheng Optoelectronics Microlight Equipment
Factory from January 1996 to December 1998, the vice senior
of workshop of the Company from January 1999 to December
2007, the manager of quality department of the Company
from January 2008 to May 2009 and the vice general manager
of technical quality of the Company from June 2009 to the
present.

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Guoliang (“Mr. GL Yuan”), aged 63, graduated
from the Changchun University of Science and Technology.
Mr. GL Yuan was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company on 27 May 2011. Mr. GL Yuan was appointed
as a member of the audit committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company on 30 November
2017. Mr. GL Yuan served as the deputy director of the
Strategic Policy Committee of the Company from May 2011 to
November 2017.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. GL Yuan worked in Shanxi
Jinxi Machines Factory from August 1985 to April 1990 and
worked with Taiyuan City Economic Committee from May
1990 to July 2006.

Based on the interests filing disclosure, as at the latest
practicable date, Mr. GL Yuan holds 3,645,000 H shares and
his spouse holds 250,000 H shares of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES ESREAREBAEBZBEBESE

Mr. Wu Bo (“"Mr. Wu"), aged 58, holds economic
management major of Heilongjiang Institute of Commerce. Mr.
Wu was appointed as a non-executive director of the Company
on 30 November 2017 and the chairman of the board of
directors, the chairman and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company on 16 February 2020.

From February 2008 to the present, Mr. Wu has been the
executive director and general manager of Shenzhen Ronger
Optics & Electronic Technology Development Company
Limited, the supervisor of Kunming Ronger Optic & Electronic
Technology Development Company Limited and the chairman
of the board of directors of Yunnan Zhongkewei Optical
Instruments Company Limited. Mr. Wu served as the general
manager of Russia Zhenhui Company from April 1997 to
August 2007.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Yongfeng (“Mr. Xu”) was appointed as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman and
a member of the audit committee, a member of the
remuneration committee and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company on 26 March 2019.

Mr. Xu, aged 52, graduated from Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law with a bachelor’s degree in accounting.
Mr. Xu obtained the Chinese Certified Public Accountant’s
Licensing Certificate, the Chinese Certified Tax Agent's
Licensing Certificate and the Chinese Legal Licensing
Certificate. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Xu worked
in the accounting department of China Construction Bank,
served as the finance manager in Shenzhen Xinnan Industrial
Development Co., Limited, the finance manager in Shenzhen
Rihao Shopping Plaza Co., Limited and the senior audit
manager in Zhonglian Certified Public Accountants Co.,
Limited.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

ES ESEREAREBAEBZBEBESE

Mr. Wang Weizhong (“"Mr. Wang"”) was appointed as an
independent non-executive director and a member of the
nomination committee of the Company on 26 March 2019.

Mr. Wang, aged 42, graduated from the Vocational and
Technical College of Shanxi University with a major in
computer networking and a college degree. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Wang worked in the marketing department of
Taiyuan Aode Software Engineering Co., Limited, served as the
manager in Jinzhong Sina Information Technology Co., Limited
and the manager in Zhangzhou Hexintong Technology Co.,
Limited.

Mr. Rong Fei (“Mr. Rong"”) was appointed as an independent
non-executive director, a member of the audit committee and
the chairman and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company on 26 March 2019.

Mr. Rong, aged 37, graduated from Shanxi University
of Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s degree in
international economics and trade. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Rong worked in the administrative affairs
department of Huadian Shanxi Energy Co., Limited and served
as the officer of the general management department of
Shanxi Hetai Real Estate Development Co., Limited.

Supervisors

Ms. Han Xiaoou (“Ms. Han"), aged 46, graduated from
Shanxi Normal University with a major in Chinese language
and holds a postgraduate degree of political science. Ms. Han
was appointed as a supervisor of the Company since 27 May
2011. Ms. Han is currently the chairman of the labor union
and the secretary of the Communist Youth League Committee
of Taiyuan Changcheng Optics Electronics Industrial Company
Limited. Ms. Han has been working in the Company since
graduating from Shanxi Normal University in 1999 and is
currently the chairman of the supervisor committee and the
senior of the executive office of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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Mr. Dong Yonghong (“Mr. Dong”), aged 56, graduated
from Shanxi University majoring in economic management.
Mr. Dong was appointed as a supervisor of the Company on
30 November 2017. Mr. Dong has been the project manager
of the research and development centre of the Company since
February 2006.

Mr. Song Zhenbao (“Mr. ZB Song”), aged 54, holds
a master's degree from lJilin University. Mr. ZB Song was
appointed as a supervisor of the Company on 30 November
2017. Mr. ZB Song is currently a business management
consultant of Changchun Huagingyuan Technology Company
Limited. Mr. ZB Song was the vice president of Changchun
Yongxin Pharmaceutical from 2006 to 2008 and the chief
consultant of UFIDA Software Company Limited, Jilin Branch
from 2009 to 2011.

Senior Management

Mr. Fan Jiming (“Mr. Fan”), aged 63, graduated from Shanxi
Provincial Electronics School. Mr. Fan currently serves as the
director of infrastructure and safety of the Company. Mr. Fan
served as the production manager, the commander of technical
reform department, the manager of purchasing & supply and
the deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Fan has
been the deputy general manager of Taiyuan Changcheng
Optics Electronics Industrial Company Limited since 1999.

Mr. Qian Yun (“Mr. Qian”), aged 60, graduated from the
Mechanical Department of Taiyuan Polytechnic University. Mr.
Qian is a senior engineer. Mr. Qian currently serves as the
director of enterprise planning of the Company. Prior to joining
the Company in 2005, Mr. Qian served as the deputy general
manager of the Taiyuan Sanjin Aluminum Company Limited.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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The board of directors of the Company submit the annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Principal Activities

The Company continued to be principally engaged in design,
research, development, manufacture, and sale of image
transmission fibre optic products. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in the note (19) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Segment Information

Details of the Group’s segmental information for the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the note (9) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 are set out in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. The board of directors of the Company does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the audited results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is set out
in the section headed “Five-year Financial Summary” of this
annual report.

Business Review and Financial Review

Details of business review and financial review of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements and note 32
to the consolidated financial statements. As at 31 December
2023, the Company had reserves in the amount to RMB
Nil (2022: RMB Nil) available for dividend distribution to
shareholders.
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Share Capital

There were no movements in the Company’s issued share
capital during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of its listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company and there is no restriction
against such rights under the Companies Law (Revised) in the
PRC.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
are set out in the note (17) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Staff Retirement Plans

All members of staff are entitled to participate in the public
welfare fund, which was set up for the purpose of ensuring
that the participating employees will have sufficient means
to support their living after retirement. For the year ended
31 December 2023, the Group reported employer's pension
scheme contributions of approximately RMB4,510,000 (2022:
RMB5,072,000).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers accounted for
approximately 44% (2022: 28%) and 92% (2022: 90%) of the
Group’s total turnover respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s
largest supplier and the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 25% (2022: 30%) and 51% (2022: 62%) of the
Group's total purchases respectively.

To the knowledge of the directors of the Company, none of
the directors or supervisors of the Company or their respective
associates or any of the shareholders of the Company who
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had
any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.
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Connected Transactions and Financial Assistance from
Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and Connected
Persons

The Group obtained financial assistance from Taiyuan
Changcheng, a substantial shareholder of the Company. As at
31 December 2023, the amount due to Taiyuan Changcheng
was approximately RMB22,100,000 (2022: RMB20,335,000).

The Group obtained financial assistance from Beijing Gensir, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. As at 31 December
2023, the amount due to Beijing Gensir was approximately
RMB1,313,000 (2022: RMB549,000).

The Group obtained financial assistance from two
connected persons (the “Connected Persons”). As at 31
December 2023, the amount due to Connected Persons was
approximately RMB733,000 (2022: RMB709,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, total interest charged
by Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and Connected Persons
was approximately RMB1,465,000 (2022: RMB1,298,000),
RMB29,000 (2022: RMB16,000) and RMB24,000 (2022:
RMB18,000) respectively. The directors of the Company
consider that the interest charged by Taiyuan Changcheng,
Beijing Gensir and Connected Persons are based on normal
commercial terms or better. The financial assistances and
interest expenses are exempted from connected transaction
requirements.

Directors

The directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Song Zhenglai (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Jiao Baoguo
Ms. Wang Lingling

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Guoliang
Mr. Wu Bo (Chairman)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Xu Yongfeng

Mr. Wang Weizhong

Mr. Rong Fei
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The directors of the Company are appointed for a term of
three years, and are subject to re-election for appointment
by shareholders at the general meeting by the end of each of
three-year period. As the nomination process of candidates
for directors of the new session of the Board has not been
completed, the re-election of the Board of the Company will
be postponed, in order to maintain the continuity of the work
of the Board. The terms of office of the committees under the
fourth session of the Board of the Company will be extended
accordingly. Before the completion of the re-election of the
Board, all members of the fourth session of the Board of
the Company will continue to perform corresponding duties
pursuant to the relevant requirements under relevant laws
and regulations, the GEM Listing Rules and the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Supervisors

The supervisors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Ms. Han Xiaoou (Chairman)
Mr. Dong Yonghong
Mr. Song Zhenbao

The supervisors of the Company are appointed for a term of
three years, and are subject to re-election for appointment
by shareholders at the general meeting by the end of each of
three-year period. As the nomination process of candidates
for supervisors of the new session of the supervisor committee
has not been completed, the re-election of the supervisor
committee of the Company will be postponed, in order
to maintain the continuity of the work of the supervisor
committee. Before the completion of the re-election of the
supervisor committee, all members of the fourth session of the
supervisor committee of the Company will continue to perform
corresponding duties pursuant to the relevant requirements
under relevant laws and regulations, the GEM Listing Rules and
the Articles of Association of the Company.

Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management

Biographical details of directors, supervisors and senior
management are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of
this annual report.
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Emoluments of The Directors and Supervisors and The EERESEHMERIEESHFAL
Five Highest Paid Individuals

Details of the directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments and the EBEBEREZE7MEeRAEEBREZESHA
five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in the — + > s¥IEHEHAGEEMEREMT14 -
note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Agreements EEREEREHR
Save as disclosed, none of the directors and supervisors of the & B 4 85 & o $”Aﬁ§$&%§$$ﬁ%ﬁéﬁi
Company has a service contract with the Company which is ARG F ARG FER—FERNE[EEE

not determinable by the Company within one year without CETERE $7I\)ﬁ‘ﬁi5<ﬂ:2ﬂﬁ% #] o
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests or Short Positions ZEEREENAEALATRG HERAR
in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debenture of the @EHEBZHAKE

Company

As at 31 December 2023, the directors or supervisors of the RZIEBE_=F+_HA=1+—H KRa&E
Company who had interests or short positions in the shares,  Ea{EERNA QA HEMEEE® (F
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of HZAEAENEEEN ([BEREBE®KL])
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of EXVEL) Z I - B RESFTRIEGR
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded 5 5% % % HA 1?1I¢1§IJ%3521I5<2/\ B A 5% 15
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the  Frit Z 22 LA B KB EGEM L
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock B &5, 46{|7K}5ﬁ;_tm§§”‘/&§$2;ﬁ§
Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by SINSTIZXEM BRI @ NN 7] M3 P 2 #E
directors of listed issuers as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the mIORBUWT

GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of RELAGRGRIEBRGZHE
the Company

Approximate
Approximate Approximate percentage of
percentage of percentage of holding of the
Number and type holding of the holding of the total share
Nature and capacity in the of domestic domestic shares of  H shares of the capital of the
Name shareholding of the Company shares/H shares the Company* Company* Company*
BEERA BEART BEALT
RER /HER nERZ HER 2 B4 N} A
£ BEALAREZMERSH SEREE A Bt R A
Yuan Guoliang Personal Interest and Family Interest 3,895,000 (Note 1) - 3.54% 1.26%
RER EINSEN 3,895,008 (Hiz1)
* Shareholding percentages have been rounded to the nearest * BHERESD AR = HiET 2 WE/ )&
two decimal places. 7 o
Note: Bt -
1. According to the interests filing disclosure, 3,645,000 H shares 1. AR5 7 a5 R IR PT IR 5% + 3,645,000% HAR
are registered in the name of Yuan Guoliang and 250,000 H NRE R &% 550 K&250,0000% HA% LA &
shares are registered in the name of his spouse. BB &ZEEE -

m&ﬁﬁta&ﬁgggmm 23
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
directors or supervisors of the Company nor their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as referred to
in Rules 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2023, so far as the directors of the
Company are aware, persons other than the directors or
supervisors of the Company who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO, were as follows:

Br EXIEBEIIN R =FF+_A=+—
B ARRESHEEAFRESG 2 HE
A BN AR QN F s EE R AR EE (E&
BESRIEEFIEXVEL) 2B - BRI
DR ESFPEERIEE S LA EEH|5E352
&85 A\ GZ 60 BT il & Re i 2 ({4 2 2k
KB BB EGEM_E T R Bl 555 461§ BT it
FBETAEFETR S M TIREMALN
GRRNAB)RBZ 2 EAEEIORE -

FERR
RZE—=F+=_A=+—H BARQF
BRI RBRES KB ERIZE3361KFT
GEZERMAR BARRIESHES
SN AR DB KEER DTS ES
FARBBALTIT

Approximate
Approximate Approximate percentage of
percentage of percentage of holding of the
Number and type holding of the holding of the total share
Nature and capacity in the of domestic domestic shares of  H shares of the capital of the
Name shareholding of the Company shares/H shares the Company* Company* Company*
BEARA BEARA BEALT
RER,/HE NERZ HER 2 B4 Riagz
e BEALAREZMERSH HEREE R A BAt* R A
Domestic Shares:
RER:
Zhang Shao Hui Interest in a controlled corporation 82,200,000 41.34% - 26.61%
ROB SEHNRER domestic shares
(Note 1)
RER (H5E1)
Beijing Gensir Registered and beneficial owner of 82,200,000 41.34% - 26.61%
Venture Capital the domestic shares and interest  domestic shares
Management Limited in a controlled corporation (Note 2)
GTRRREIEREAEE REARZECIRERAGARRE MER(MF2)
ARAA HARZER
Taiyuan Changcheng Registered and beneficial owner of 80,160,000 40.31% - 25.95%

Optics Electronics
Industrial Company
Limited
ARTRAXEFAR
BERA

the domestic shares

NERZBLEREREAA

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Approximate
Approximate Approximate percentage of
percentage of percentage of holding of the

Number and type holding of the holding of the total share
Nature and capacity in the of domestic domestic shares of  H shares of the capital of the
Name shareholding of the Company shares/H shares the Company* Company* Company*
BEALRA BEALR BEALT
RER,/HR nERZ HER 2 B4 RA&Eg2
#e BEALRREZHERSH HERER R A ARl R A
Beijing Yuankang Registered and beneficial owner of 34,000,000 17.10% - 11.01%
Technology Co., Ltd. the domestic shares domestic shares
TRREREARAR  MERZBZRERERA NER
Ning Shuwu Interest in a controlled corporation 34,000,000 17.10% - 11.01%
EHR g N ol domestic shares
(Note 3)
KA R (M3E3)
Taiyuan Tanghai Registered and beneficial owner of 24,900,000 12.52% - 8.06%
Automatic Control the domestic shares domestic shares
Company Limited NERBEREGHEBA NER
AREBEDEHER
AR
Liu Jiang Interest in a controlled Corporation 24,900,000 12.52% - 8.06%
Eni REHAA R domestic shares
(Note 4)
WA R (M)
Qiu Gui Qin Family interest 24,900,000 12.52% - 8.06%
BEE R kR domestic shares
(Note 4)
WERK (MzT4)
* Shareholding percentages have been rounded to the nearest * BFRESHEAERESZOZMENE
two decimal places. i °
Note: P 3T -
1. According to the interests filing disclosure, part of these domestic 1. BIEERARAEE FOUHERNER

shares (57,300,000 domestic shares) is registered in the name of
Beijing Gensir, a company whose issued shares were reportedly
registered as to 100% in the name of Zhang Shao Hui. As Zhang
Shao Hui is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one third
or more of the voting power at the general meeting of Beijing
Gensir, for the purpose of the SFO, Zhang Shao Hui is deemed to
be interested in the entire 57,300,000 domestic shares held by
Beijing Gensir.

(57,300,0008& W& J&) LAdL R 2 E &
BEREB BT ZBRMHM100%E S B TR
BRDVIBATHA - AR RDIBEIL RAE
BEAE EHETERZESTE=92
— A IR R A R HA S 5 T
= RkROEBER AN RRIEREE 2 250
57,300,000 W& [ A A 1w

WE R AL B RO ERA T
—Eo=FEH
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According to the interests filing disclosure, the rest of these
domestic shares (24,900,000 domestic shares) are registered
in the name of Taiyuan Tanghai Automatic Control Company
Limited (“Taiyuan Tanghai”), a company whose issued shares
were reportedly registered as to approximately 36.37% in the
name of Beijing Gensir. As Beijing Gensir is entitled to exercise or
control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at
the general meeting of Taiyuan Tanghai, for the purpose of the
SFO, Zhang Shao Hui is deemed to be interested in the entire
24,900,000 domestic shares held by Taiyuan Tanghai.

2. According to the interests filing disclosure, part of these domestic
shares (57,300,000 domestic shares) is registered in the name of
Beijing Gensir, a company whose issued shares were reportedly
registered as to 100% in the name of Zhang Shao Hui. The
rest of these domestic shares (24,900,000 domestic shares) are
registered in the name of Taiyuan Tanghai, a company whose
issued shares were reportedly registered as to approximately
36.37% in the name of Beijing Gensir. As Beijing Gensir is entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the
voting power at the general meeting of Taiyuan Tanghai, for the
purpose of the SFO, Beijing Gensir is deemed to be interested in
the entire 57,300,000 domestic shares held by Beijing Gensir and
24,900,000 domestic shares held by Taiyuan Tanghai.

3. According to the interests filing disclosure, these 34,000,000
domestic shares are registered in the name of Beijing Yuankang
Technology Co., Ltd.dt RREREBR QA (“Beijing
Yuankang”), a company whose issued shares were reportedly
registered as to approximately 51% in the name of Ning Shuwu.
As Jia Yaotian is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of
one third or more of the voting power at the general meeting
of Beijing Yuankang, for the purpose of the SFO, Ning Shuwu is
deemed to be interested in the entire 34,000,000 domestic shares
held by Beijing Yuankang.

4. According to the interests filing disclosure, these 24,900,000
domestic shares are registered in the name of Taiyuan Tanghai,
a company whose issued shares were reportedly registered as to
approximately 47.29% in the name of Liu Jiang. As Liu Jiang is
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of
the voting power at the general meeting of Taiyuan Tanghai, for
the propose of the SFO, Liu Jiang is deemed to be interested in
the entire 24,900,000 domestic shares held by Taiyuan Tanghai.
Qiu Gui Qin, as the spouse of Liu Jiang, is taken to be interested
in the shares held by Liu Jiang by virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are not
aware of other person who, as at 31 December 2023, had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2023
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Share Option Scheme
The Group do not have share option scheme.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire H Shares

During the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the
directors or supervisors of the Company was granted options
to subscribe for H shares of the Company. As at 31 December
2023, none of the directors or supervisors of the Company nor
their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right to
acquire H shares of the Company or had exercised any such
right during the year.

Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed, no contracts of significance in relation to
the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director or a supervisor
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the year ended 31 December 2023 or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group was entered into or existed during the year.

Competing Interests

The directors of the Company believe that none of the directors,
supervisors and management shareholders of the Company nor
any of their respective associates had an interest in a business
which competes or may compete with the business of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Mr. Wu Bo, a Director of the Group, is the equity owner of
Shenzhen Ronger Optics & Electronic Technology Development
Company Limited and Rongsheng Optoelectronics (Hong
Kong) Co., Ltd., of which the sales with the Company as at 31
December 2023 amounting to approximately RMB1,178,000.

The Group obtained financial assistance from Shenzhen
Kenman (EIJIGLE2) , a substantial shareholder of Beijing
Gensir, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and as
at 31 December 2023, the principal and interest due to
Shenzhen Kenman (Z&JIIE1LE £ ) amounted to approximately
RMB7,858,000 (12% per annum).
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Confirmation of Independence by Independent Non-
Executive Directors

The Company has received the annual confirmation
of independence from all the incumbent independent
nonexecutive directors of the Company pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considered them to be
independent.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held
by the public as at the date of this report.

Audit Committee

In compliance with Rules 5.28 and 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Company has established an audit committee. The
primary duties of the audit committee are to review and to
provide supervision over the financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system of the Group. The
audit committee comprises two independent non-executive
directors and one non-executive director, namely Mr. Xu
Yongfeng, Mr. Rong Fei and Mr. Yuan Guoliang respectively.
Mr. Xu Yongfeng has been appointed as the chairman of
the audit committee. The audit committee has reviewed the
audited annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Auditors

CCTH CPA Limited (“CCTH") has resigned as the auditor of the
Company with effect from 13 November 2023. The Board with
the recommendation of the audit committee of the Company
appointed ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (“ZHONGHUI") as
the auditor of the Company with effect from 15 December
2023 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of
CCTH. The accompanying financial statements have been
audited by ZHONGHU who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out
in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

On behalf of the board of directors

Wu Bo
Chairman

Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province, the PRC
30 April 2024
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company recognizes the
importance of corporate governance practice of a listed
company and is committed to adopting the standards of
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code"”) contained
in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules. In the opinion of the
Board of the Company, the Company has complied with the
code provisions except for no arrangement of insurance cover
in respect of legal action against the directors of the Company
(code provisions C.1.8) due to insufficient budget provided.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings
as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 (the “Required Standard
of Dealings”) of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by directors. Having
made specific enquiries of all directors of the Company, the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the
Required Standard of Dealings regarding securities transactions
by directors for the year ended 31 December 2023.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors of the Company has the collective
responsibility for leadership of, and for promoting the success
of, the Group by directing and supervising the Group'’s affairs.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The board of directors of the Company currently comprises
eight directors, of which three are executive directors, namely
Mr. Song Zhenglai, Mr. Jiao Baoguo and Ms. Wang Lingling;
two non-executive directors, namely Mr. Yuan Guoliang and
Mr. Wu Bo and three independent non-executive directors,
namely Mr. Xu Yongfeng, Mr. Wang Weizhong and Mr. Rong
Fei.
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The directors of the Company are appointed for a term of
three years, and are subject to re-election for appointment
by shareholders at the general meeting by the end of each of
three-year period. As the nomination process of candidates
for directors of the new session of the Board has not been
completed, the re-election of the Board of the Company will
be postponed, in order to maintain the continuity of the work
of the Board. The terms of office of the committees under the
fourth session of the Board of the Company will be extended
accordingly. Before the completion of the re-election of the
Board, all members of the fourth session of the Board of
the Company will continue to perform corresponding duties
pursuant to the relevant requirements under relevant laws
and regulations, the GEM Listing Rules and the Articles of
Association of the Company.

The Company has received the annual confirmation
of independence from all the incumbent independent
nonexecutive directors of the Company pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considered them to be
independent.

To the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the
members of the board of directors of the Company have
no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships among themselves and between the chairman
and the chief executive officer.

BOARD MEETING

The board of directors of the Company met seven times during

ARPEFEZAEZERR=F LEARN
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BRI - EEFTEFHREANESR
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the year ended 31 December 2023 and the attendance of the AAFIEFEHRITLERAEH - KEZ2H
members is as follows: BRI
Number of
attendance
Name of director EEn H X8
Mr. Song Zhenglai RIRR 52 H 717
Mr. Jiao Baoguo BREIEE 717
Ms. Wang Lingling FrRu+ 717
Mr. Yuan Guoliang RER %A 717
Mr. Wu Bo RKFEE 717
Mr. Xu Yongfeng FFEkE 77
Mr. Wang Weizhong TEHAKE 77
Mr. Rong Fei BRI E 7/7

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2023
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DIRECTOR’S CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

The directors of the Company should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution into

TREREE

EEFEARIRER

ARBEFRL2EKEEERR NILE
I 5 5 H G K A B - 1 T RE AR 1R A AT
BERATRARAPESTSEHNATEL

the board of directors of the Company remains informed and BERfcEEZE—E_=F+=-_A=+—HI
relevant. The individual training record of each director of  FEF  AQATESEZEY 2 EAREN
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023 is as T
follows:
Updating on the
business, operations
and corporate
governance matter
BELY SER
TLEEREEZ
Name of director EEnE R &R
Mr. Song Zhenglai REBRSEE v/
Mr. Jiao Baoguo ERBESAE v/
Ms. Wang Lingling FrREBRXZ L v
Mr. Yuan Guoliang REREE 4
Mr. Wu Bo R FHE v/
Mr. Xu Yongfeng FF Rk A ST A v/
Mr. Wang Weizhong TREARLE v/
Mr. Rong Fei BRI E v
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY EEESZLEE

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse the board of directors and sees increasing
diversity at the board of directors’ level as an essential
element in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.
The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the
“Policy”). The nomination committee has reviewed the
Policy during the year ended 31 December 2023 and where
appropriate, recommends revision to the board of directors of
the Company for consideration and approval.

ARBTHEARNEBEZTLEZEKE
s TRAEFE T LRERARA]
BFEESNEBLR - ARRERMAES
ELTUIEBRR (K [BE]) BE-T—=
FH-A=+—BLEFE RELEZEEE
EHZBER jrﬁ/\/\ﬂﬁﬂ'?$ AEEE
ERERT 2 AR E B Rt -
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The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the nomination committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate: qualification and experience, character
and integrity, accomplishment and reputation, relevant skills
and experience to contribute to the board of directors,
commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest,
diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Zhao Zhi resigned as the chairman of the board of
directors of the Company on 15 January 2020. Mr. Wu Bo was
appointed as the chairman of the board of directors of the
Company on 16 February 2020.

Mr. Jiao Baoguo resigned as the general manager of the
Company on 11 January 2020. Following the resignation of
Mr. Jiao Baoguo as the general manager of the Company, Mr.
Zhao Taibing was appointed as the general manager of the
Company with effect from 15 January 2020.

The chairman of the board of directors of the Company
provides leadership for the board of directors of the Company
and ensures that the board of directors of the Company works
effectively and performs its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely manner.
The chief executive officer is responsible for the management
of the business of the Group, implementation of the policies
and objectives set out by the board of directors of the
Company and is accountable to the board of directors of the
Company for the overall operation of the Group.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has set up three committees including audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, each committee with its specific terms of reference
as set out in the CG Code.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in consistence with the CG Code. The audit
committee comprises two independent non-executive directors
and one non-executive director, namely Mr. Xu Yongfeng,
Mr. Rong Fei and Mr. Yuan Guoliang. Mr. Xu Yongfeng was
appointed as the chairman of the audit committee.

The primary duties of the audit committee include (i) to
consider the appointment of external auditors and any
questions of resignation or dismissal; (i) to review financial
information and (iii) to oversight of the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control system. The
audit committee discharged its duties by reviewing the
financial matters, quarterly, interim and annual financial
reports and financial statements during the year ended 31
December 2023. The audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2023 have been reviewed by
the audit committee.

The audit committee met five times during the year ended
31 December 2023 and the attendance of the members is as
follows:

TREREE

EREES
ARADRUBZZEG HEARBER
BENatXE AT - ERZEEAMEA
B IEAITERFFKESLE - RRFEER
—HZFMITEETRER K EEMK - 7k
TEEEZIRERZES®ERE-

ERZERZIERERE )BEINE
ZBAD 2 ZE N BB BNR B B 2 (M
B (i)ZR B % B R (i) B B M 5 E R
Eg BREBEMANEERR - BE-T
T=F+-A=t—HLEFE B%ZE
SERTTHRBE BREHMEERE F
B E R FREIERE MRE M IEEHREK -
EZZESCEHBE_T_=F1t_H
St HLEFEZRERYHRE-

BE-_E-_=F+-_A=+—HIEE"
EREZEQLURITANREGE KEZHE
(=D N

Number of
Attendance
Name of member REHE X
Mr. Xu Yongfeng ST Rk A S A 4/4
Mr. Rong Fei BRREE 4/4
Mr. Yuan Guoliang EER &L 4/4
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE SMEES
The Company has established a remuneration committee with ARNBERYFNEZEES EZ2MBIES

written terms of reference in consistence with the CG Code.
The remuneration committee comprises two independent
nonexecutive directors and one non-executive director, namely
Mr. Rong Fei, Mr. Xu Yongfeng and Mr. Yuan Guoliang. Mr.
Rong Fei was appointed as the chairman of the remuneration
committee.

BRNatXeEaTl FMEZEehmA
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The primary duties of the remuneration committee include
(i) to make recommendation to the board of directors on the
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy and
(i) to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals. The remuneration reviewed the remuneration policy
of all directors’ and senior management during the year ended
31 December 2023.

The remuneration committee met one time during the year
ended 31 December 2023 and the attendance of the members
is as follows:

FNZEe T ERERE  (B2KE
ENEREEANBZHFHERRERE A
Ko L aR 32 1E 35 1 B35 BA I 1 72 3 B R SR 10
BRF MES=gREDEZ Rii)ma Lt e
EEENFMER - BE_T _=F1+=
A=ZT-RLEFE FHZEeCEN2
BEZNSREEABNFHER-

BE-_T-_=F+-A=+—RHLFE"
?ﬁ@ﬂi,\a;ﬁi —REgFE KEBZHF
=R OENE

Number of
attendance
Name of member REHAE R
Mr. Rong Fei &L A
Mr. Xu Yongfeng FrokE LA 171
Mr. Yuan Guoliang RERLEE 1/1
Remuneration paid to members of senior management YRNEMEERBAE (BEEENEE )N
(including directors and supervisors) fell within the following N T~ 5 & E
bands:
Number of
Individuals
AE
RMB 120,000 or below AR®120,0007T AT 12
RMB120,001 —= RMB300,000 AR ®120,0017T— AR %300,0007T 3

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
with written terms of reference in consistence with the CG
Code. The nomination committee comprises the chairman of
the board of directors and two independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Wu Bo, Mr. Xu Yongfeng and Mr. Wang
Weizhong. Mr. Wu Bo was appointed as the chairman of the
nomination committee.
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The primary duties of the nomination committee include (i) to
review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the board of directors; (ii) to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the board of directors and (iii) to make recommendations to
the board of directors on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors. The nomination reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the board of directors of the Company and
the board diversity policy during the year ended 31 December
2023.

The nomination committee met one time during the year
ended 31 December 2023 and the attendance of the members
is as follows:

TREREE

REZEGZIEBEBE: (WMRFTES
SRRE - ABNMAK (BIEREE - ME R
KR HE) (MWEEBHREERAEE
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BE_ZT_=F+-_A=+—HILFE"
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BRaT:

Number of
attendance
Name of member REHA HERE
Mr. Wu Bo REFHE 1”1
Mr. Xu Yongfeng kR S A 11
Mr. Wang Weizhong FEBEE 1/1
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for
presenting annual; interim; and quarterly reports, price
sensitive announcements and other disclosure requirements
under the GEM Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The audit committee reviewed the financial matters, quarterly,
interim and annual financial reports and financial statements
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023.

The respective responsibilities of the directors of the Company
and the auditors for preparing financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” of this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The board of directors of the Company acknowledged
its responsibility for the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems. In light of the size
and scale of the Group's businesses, the board of directors
of the Company is delegated with the responsibility for
overseeing the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group on an ongoing basis and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Therefore, the Group currently do not have
an internal audit department. During the revision of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, the
board of directors of the Company identified that the Group
has material uncertainty in going concern.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately RMB153,328,000 and
RMB108,301,000 respectively. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore the Group may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business.
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The directors of the Company have been taking active steps
to improve the liquidity position of the Group. These steps
include:(i) at the capital level, introducing new strategic
investors into the private placement of new shares/bonds,
and negotiating and implementing a debt restructuring plan
with shareholders, borrowers and financial institutions; (ii)
at the operational level, revitalizing the long-term assets and
planning to lease out the properties temporarily not used
in the Company’s business operations, so as to increase the
property income; developing new products for extending
the downstream of the industrial chain and strengthening
the existing sales forces and introducing more capable
strategic sales agencies; and taking the advantage of the
technological advantages accumulated by the Company in the
field of military products to expand into the field of civilian
products and increase new customers and income sources;
and (iii) in respect of liabilities, negotiating and implementing
interest reduction/exemption program with shareholders and
borrowers and seeking financial support from shareholders and
borrowers.

Provided that these measures can successfully improve the
liquidity position of the Group, the directors of the Company
are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis. Should the Group be
unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made to write down the value of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities
which might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities as current assets and liabilities. The effect of these
adjustments has not been reflected in the financial statements.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The external auditors provide services to the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2023. The remuneration of the
external auditors for the provision of audit service for the year
under review is RMB550,000 and the provision of non-audit
services is RMB Nil.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022
has been audited by CCTH CPA Limited. In 2023, CCTH
CPA Limited resigned as the auditor of the Company, and
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited (“ZHONGHUI") has been
appointed as the auditor of the Group to fill the casual vacancy
created by the resignation. The account for the year ended
31 December 2023 was audited by ZHONGHUI whose term
of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The audit committee has recommended to the board
of directors of the Company that ZHONGHUI be re-appointed
as the auditor of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Company Secretary

Ms. Fong Yip Ha, Angela of DRJ Limited, formerly known as
SBA Stone Forest Limited, an external service provider, has
been engaged by the Company as the company secretary and
an authorized representative with effect from 21 June 2021 in
replacement of Ms. Han Lei.

Her primary contact person at the Company is Ms. Guo
Weiwei, secretary of the board of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Ms. Fong has
complied with taking no less than 15 hours of the relevant
professional training requirement under Rule 5.15 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposal at shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to article 53 of the articles of association of the
Company, an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") be
convened on the written requisition of shareholder holding
more than 10% (including 10%) of the voting shares issued by
the Company. When the board of directors receives the written
requisition, the board of directors shall convene an EGM within
two months.
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Pursuant to article 73 of the articles of association of the
Company, if shareholders request to convene an EGM or
a class meeting of shareholders, the following procedures
should be followed: an EGM may be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more shareholders of the Company
holding more than 10% of the paid up capital of the Company
which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (the “Requisitionists”). Such written requisition
must specify the resolution(s) to be considered in the EGM
and must be signed by the Requisitionists and deposited at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such principal
office, the registered office of the Company. Shareholders
should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in
such article for convening an EGM. If the board of directors of
the Company does not convene the EGM within 30 days from
the receipt of such requisition, the Requisitionists are entitled
to convene the EGM themselves within four months after the
board of directors of the Company received their requisition at
the Company’s expense.

ENQUIRIES PUT TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries or requests in
respect of their rights to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong or by email to ccoegw1@126.com, for
the attention of the secretary of the board of directors of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels
with investors to update the latest business development and
financial performance including the publication of quarterly,
interim and annual reports, notices, announcements and
circulars on the GEM website and the Company’s website in
order to maintain a high level of transparency, and to ensure
there is no selective disclosure of inside information.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the "ESG Report”) of Shanxi Changcheng Microlight
Equipment Co. Ltd. (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”), for the period from
1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting
Period").

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The ESG Report presents policies, the management
systems, the performance and plans of the Group’s major
business segments related to the material environmental
and social issues. It is prepared pursuant to the “comply
or explain” provisions of the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the "ESG Guide”) under
Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on (the “Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
corporate governance is disclosed separately in the
Corporate Governance Report as set out in the annual
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023 published on 30 April 2024.

The contents of the ESG Report are determined in
accordance with a set of systematic procedures, which
include identifying and prioritising various stakeholders,
determining and prioritising the materiality and key
topics related to environmental and social issues,
defining the reporting scope and boundary, collecting
relevant materials, compiling data based on the
required information, and conducting analysis of
relevant information. On this basis, the Company has
made quantifiable disclosures on the key performance
metrics, analysis and comparison of data, together with
comprehensive reporting on the ESG performance.

The information in the ESG Report was gathered
through the collection of internal policies of different
subsidiaries of the Group, the historic data of the ESG
practices in the Group, the feedback from various
stakeholder groups via online surveys and data analysis
based on the numeric information submitted by
different subsidiaries of the Group. All information
is prepared and published based on existing policies,
practices and official documents in an accurate, genuine
and transparent manner based on the reporting
principles of “materiality”, “quantitative”, “balance”,
and “consistency”.
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RE HERERRSE

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

B % /= A

Materiality Key stakeholders and their ESG concerns have been identified
during the preparation of the report, and targeted disclosures
have been made in the report based on the relative importance
of their concerns.

EZ2M1RA RECEREEIRPERFEEN AT R HBINESGH
RCOUWRBAMIZENEHEZRE ERAREPMEY
MR

Quantitative This report presents quantitative environmental and social KPIs
and previous information for comparison when used. The criteria,
methodologies, references and conversion factors used for
calculating the KPIs mainly refer to the ESG Guide.

E/c/RAI ABENEENNRBE N SARBIIERUALBEER A
BEEARETLR - AEATHEREIEENRE - FE -2
ZRERERTZLHRE L REREREES -

Balance This report complies with the principle of balance to present
the current performance and management of the Group in ESG
in an objective manner.

TR Al ApEBREFERA TE2RAEENESGRE LERB MK

Unless otherwise indicated, no major adjustments have been
made to the disclosure scope in this report as compared
with that in the previous ESG Reports of the Group, with the
consistent statistical approaches adopted.
BrZINRIERRIN AR ERH A EEEFESGRERBEDEL
BEAFHE BREA-—BOBRESRA A

Consistency

— R

This report is available on the website of the Company
(www.sxccoe.com) and the news website of Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (www.hkexnews.hk).

REPORTING BOUNDARY & BOARD
RESPONSIBILITY

ABOUT THE GROUP

The business scope of the Group mainly covers: optical
fiber components such as optical fiber face plates,
inverters and microchannel plates, as well as the
production, sales, research, development of night vision
components and their technical consultation as well as
import and export operations; leasing of self-owned
properties; and property management services.

IRERE AN A BADLE (Www.sxccoe.com)
LEARGREEMERARIEES
#83h (wwvw.hkexnews.hk)_E ATt & B o

BREHERESEEE

BREAEE
AEEFELEHEDE  LME
R EReE RBIRFNBEET
B ARERBUOEE HE
ot - B R B osh AN H DA
L BEEFEME MERS-

mﬁﬁiﬁwtasmwﬁmm 41

—E-=f



42

BOARD RESPONSIBILITY

The Group attaches great importance to the environmental,
social and governance (ESG) management, and has
developed a systematic ESG governance structure
concerning those charged with governance, management
and executives. As the supreme responsible and decision-
making body of the ESG management system, the Board,
with the assistance of the Audit Committee, takes full
charge of supervision and management of the ESG issues,
and is also responsible for overseeing and coordinating the
management of ESG-related risks, holding a meeting at
least once a year to discuss important ESG issues.

The Group regularly performs materiality assessment
on environmental, social and governance issues. The
specific process and results of the assessment are
detailed in the subsection headed “ESG Strategy” of the
annual ESG report and subject to review by the Board.
The Board of the Group has assessed the potential
impact and opportunities of ESG issues on its overall
strategy, and reviewed the materiality assessment results
of ESG issues. The Board has understood the ESG-
related issues of the Group and confirmed the current
ESG-related management policies and ESG management
concepts. The details of the important ESG topics of
the Group concerning responsible management, smart
connectivity, green development and harmonious
ecology, have been disclosed in this report.

REPORTING SCOPE

This is the Environment, Social and Governance Report
of the Group, which highlights its overall performance
in the environmental, social and governance (the
“ESG") aspects, with disclosure reference made to the
ESG Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers the
overall performance of the Group’s business operations
in the PRC for the period from 1 January 2023 to 31
December 2023 in major environmental and social
areas, including headquarters offices and production
facilities.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the
Group to report in this ESG report, key stakeholders
including investors, shareholders and employees of
the Group have been involved in regular engagement
sessions to discuss and review areas of attention which
will help the business meets its potential growth and be
prepared for future challenges.

STAKEHOLDER’S FEEDBACK

The Group is grateful to the stakeholders for their long-
term support and assistance to its development. It
always attaches great importance to the expectations
and demands of stakeholders in terms of environment,
society and governance. Stakeholders are welcome
to provide opinions on our ESG approaches and
performance.

The Group would communicate with various stakeholders
periodically in order to understand their concerns and
expectations. The communication channels with all
stakeholders include face-to-face meeting, telephone
interview, questionnaire survey and on-site visit. The
following table has summarised various types of
stakeholders, their expectations and communication
channels.
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RIBE HERENR

Stakeholders
HRE

Government and
regulatory authorities

U & BB

Shareholder and
investors

BRRRIZEA

Employees

E&

Media
prgs

Suppliers
HEm

Customers
B

Community

1t 18

&

Communication Channels
BEEE
Important conferences, policy advisory,
case reports, inspections, documents
exchange, information disclosure
EAEH - BELH BRER
HEER ANER -BEE

General meetings, annual reports

BRRRE CEFH

Employee satisfaction survey,
employee activities, workers’ congress,
employee trainings, staff handbook
BETmBE#AE BETEH:
BAE® BIHEI-8IFM:

Interviews on business operation,
promotion of company culture,
media conferences
PERKETH EEXLEER-
Heegme

Supplier evaluation, bidding meetings,
negotiations on strategic cooperation,
exchanges and visits
HERER AFRARS®
BEAERH RRESHF

Customer satisfaction survey, holding
industry exchanges and promotion
activities
EFMERERAE
BIRTERIRLIEREETE
Charitable activities, community
activities, campus talks,
environmental awareness
N R HRES
TERETHE RREH
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Topics of concern
BEIRE
Operation compliance
Corporate governance
Energy conservation
BREE
NCID=BES
B B B BE
Profitability

Operating strategy
Transparent disclosure

A FgEN
R R
BEMBRERE

Salary and welfare
Development and training
Occupational health and safety
8 T MER
ERANFI
BEREERETS

Operation compliance
Social influence
Performance of corporate social
responsibility
BHREE
PEMETEN
TrELHEEERR

Fair cooperation
Honest and promise keeping
Coordinated development
AT A
BIZEL
HFEERE

Realisation of sound industry
development Win-win
partnership
BERRMITEER
EHFEHAR

Community welfare Community
relationship Employment
promotion
aa-/N
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

We highly appreciate and welcome feedback from
our stakeholders on the ESG Report. Please give your
suggestions or share your views with us via email at
ccoegw 1@126.com.

Environmental

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to sustainable
development and compliance with laws and regulations
related to environmental protection, the Group
endeavors to minimise the environmental impact of the
business activities.

The Group has established systems to ensure environmental
compliance. It seeks to optimise its production by
adopting techniques with low energy consumption and
environmental pollution, implementing environmental-
friendly waste disposal methods and enhancing the
environmental awareness of the employees through
regular trainings. The management team has the overall
responsibility for environmental protection matters within
the Group.

Emissions

There are three major types of emissions generated
during the business activities of the Group.

(1) Indirect Greenhouse Gases Emission

The business activities of major business
segments do not directly generate significant
air emissions. The most common air emission
from its daily production and business activities
is indirect greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission
which mainly generated from the consumption of
purchased electricity and water consumption.

As the commitment of energy saving and
environmental protection are the Group’s policies,
we make our best effort to keep the damage to
the environment at a minimal level by reducing
pollutants and wastes during the production
process.

During the Reporting Period, the GHG emissions
of the major businesses were 234.75 tonnes,
representing an increase of 31.75% as compared
to the emissions of year 2022.
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RE HERERRSE

()

(3)

Non-hazardous Water

In terms of the principal business, the products
produced are mainly in solid state. The water is
used for daily consumption and a small amount
of purified water for production, and therefore a
small amount of waste water is generated. As the
waste water is produced in daily use and does
not contain any harmful and toxic substance,
the waste water is discharged into the municipal
sewage system through pipelines.

During the Reporting Period, the total amount
of non-hazardous wastewater generated by the
Group was 16,307 tonnes (2022: 14,876 tonnes),
representing an increase of 9.62% as compared
to 2022.

Non-hazardous Solid Wastes

All major business segments produced non-
hazardous solid wastes which include used
packaging materials, waste from production of
daily office necessities, etc. The Group has policy
in place to encourage its staff to minimise the
use of office supplies, such as using recycle paper
to reduce paper consumption. The Group would
also increase the recycle intensity in the office
and production plants in order to reduce the
amount of waste and achieve the environmental
sustainability target.

During the Reporting Period, the amount of
non-hazardous solid waste was 12.7 tonnes
(2022: 9.2 tonnes), representing an increase of
38.04% % as compared to 2022.

The Group does not generate significant air
emissions or hazardous waste.
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The table below showed the total emissions of
the Group in the Reporting Period and the year
of 2022.

TRETASENHEHHE
T _FENEBIRE-

Intensity in 2023 Intensity in 2022
(consumption/ (consumption/

production production

Emission quantities) quantities)

category/Key (energy unit/ (energy unit/

performance Amount Amount tonnes/thousand tonnes/thousand

indicators Unit in 2023 in 2022 pieces) pieces)

—BZZ=F —E-F

BE CH#E/ BECEE/

LEE) £EE)

BRER/ —EC-CF —EBC-CF (REREN/ (BREN,/

BRENEE B B BE W,/ T4 M,/ TH)

Waste water Tonnes 16,307 14,876 0.3 0.36
FEK I

GHG emissions  Tonnes 234.75 178.18 4.36 4.34
BEREBHN M

Non-hazardous ~ Tonnes 12.7 9.2 2.35 2.24
waste I

BEEEY

The methodology adopted for reporting on
GHG emissions set out above was based on
“How to Prepare an ESG Report? Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
issued by the Stock Exchange.

LEXFEBEERBHERRE
Pk R B9 75 55 T B A Bk X P
EHENTMAREBERE &&
RERREMERE - REHER
ARERERESI] -

WA RBMAEEMROBRD A
SRR
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Use of Resources

The table below showed total primary resources
consumption in the Reporting Period and the year of
2022.

Resources category/
Key performance

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BRRE HERERBRKE

BREA
TRETRBERARA R T ——
EHE2EREREE-

Intensity in 2023 Intensity in 2022
(consumption/ (consumption/
production production
quantities) quantities)
(energy unit/ (energy unit/
tonnes/thousand tonnes/thousand

indicators Unit Amount in 2023  Amount in 2022 pieces) pieces)
—BZZF —E-CE
RE CB#E/ RE (H#E/
LEE) £EE)
ERER,/ —ERCZZ=F F (REREN/ (REREf/
BRENER EfI 1§ E W,/ TH) W/ T#)
Energy
BB
Electricity kWh0'000
g7 ETRE 219.97 189.98 41.64 46.27
Water consumption m?
Ak VAR 44,936 42,564 0.85 1.04
Packaging Materials ~ Tonnes
BEDH I 28 22 0.53 0.54

Note: Packaging materials include polystyrene foam
containers, paper boxes and a small amount of plastic
bags and metal packaging boxes for the major business
products of the Group.

The Group has been adhering to the principle of
“saving and spending” and continued to strengthen its
management over water and electricity consumption.
The resources used are principally attributed to
electricity and water consumed at its production
facilities and offices. Under its relevant environmental
policies, the Group proactively seeks opportunities for
increasing operating efficiency to reduce the use of
resources, such as energy savings on lights and air-
conditioning systems. The Group continuously practiced
“energy savings and consumption reductions” in daily
resource use such as water, electricity and consumables,
built awareness of saving electricity and water, and
implemented a strict waste recycling and disposal
process, in an aim to strive for resource-efficient and
clean development of the Company, and reduce adverse
impact of its activities on the environment.
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The Group conducts regular inspections and maintenance
of water equipment, pipeline facilities and water
appliances, and supervises the status of the water
supply network in real time to ensure that the operating
personnel is able to make timely responses in case of
abnormalities, thus effectively reducing the waste of
water caused by “running, overflowing, and dripping”
faucets. The Group also closely monitors the utilisation
of resources and reports the performance to the senior
management in this regard.

The Group gives priority to energy saving and efficiency
improvement, and continues to tap the energy-saving
potential of key energy-consuming equipment and
production processes in production. Targeted technical
transformation plans have been developed and
implemented regarding the production system and
production auxiliary systems, including air-conditioning
systems and lighting systems.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group believes the conservation of natural resources
as an indispensable component of its sustainable
business. Through actively promoting environmental
friendly measures, the Group encourages efficient use of
different resources, including energy, paper, water and
other raw materials. As such, the Group has initiated
policies to raise the awareness of electricity conservation
and taken energy saving measures in the daily operation.

The Group has established systems to ensure environmental
compliance by adopting techniques with low energy
consumption and environmental pollution. The Group has
also appointed dedicated staff to monitor its compliance
with relevant laws and regulations as well as reviewed and
updated the internal environmental protection policies.
Staff is encouraged to support environmental protection,
minimise use of natural resources and reduce wastes. Paper
is to be recycled to reduce paper consumption. Electrical
equipment and lights are only switched on when needed
as one of our power conservation policy. The Group is
committed to implementing all feasible policies to minimise
the adverse impact of its operations on the environment
and natural resources.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group adopted
stringent cost control on the consumption of all primary
resources. Due to the nature of its business, the Group
has no direct and material impact on the environment
and natural resources in the course of its operations,
except for the above emissions and use of resources.

Climate Change

Since the climate change risks are caused by the
increasing severity of global warming effects, indirect
greenhouse gas (“GHG") emission is a significant factor.
Energy-efficiency and carbon reduction are crucial
parts of the corporate culture of the Group, and drive
us to promote innovation and energy conservation
initiatives. The Group is committed to prioritising actions
that mitigate climate change when making decisions.
It works to strengthen production control, strive to
minimise resource waste and pollution, improve sewage
management and reduce energy consumption, with
focus on energy-saving emission reduction technologies
and strategies, to reduce GHG emissions.

Social

The Group adopts people-oriented business philosophy,
emphasizes the rights and interests of employees,
respect their needs, and treat all employees fairly.
The Group provides employees with an ideal working
environment, and expect them to take a positive
attitude towards work in a way that realizes its values.
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Employment and Labour Practices

In terms of the employment, health and safety,
development and training and labour standards,
the Group has complied with all relevant laws and
regulations which include:

1 Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China

2 Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China

3 Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China

4 Regulations on the Supervision of Labour Security

5 Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China

6 Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance

7 Regulations on the Reporting, Investigation and

Disposition of Work Safety Accidents

8 Law of the People’'s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases

9 Fire Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China

10 Regulation on the Safety Management of
Hazardous Chemicals

Employment

The Group had a total number of approximately 320
employees (full-time) as of 31 December 2023.

(i) Number of Employee by Gender
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BRRE HERERBRKE

(i) Number of Employee by Major Business (i) 1EEANBZFEXEE D
Segments 7
2 s 2
. Group headquarters and others . SEAE R EHM
. Taiyuan Changcheng Feibo Optoelectronic . KNIR R K IFEE K BRI
Technology Company Limited* BRAF]
Q Taiyuan Changcheng Weiguang Weitong Q KRR RLE A R E F B
Electronics Company Limited* AR AT
(iv)  All employees of the Group come from the PRC (iv) ZAEEEESDZKEFEAPE
() Employee Turnover Rate by Gender ) HMERIE D EES AN
Female Male
pegca Bt
(vi)  Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group (vi) BFRAFIZE D HIES AR
A#
>30 to 50 >50
(vii)  Regarding the employee turnover rate, all were (i) TEERXEFEH BEE

occurred in the PRC

The Group rewards and recognises performing
staff by providing a competitive remuneration
package and implementing a sound performance
appraisal system with appropriate incentives, and
promotes career development and progression by
appropriate training and providing opportunities
within the Group for career advancement.

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC, and develops and
strictly implements the relevant administrative
rules and measures, which specify the
requirements relating to employment, labour
relations, employees’ remuneration and welfare
to protect the rights of employees.
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Health and Safety

The Group has been committed to protect employees’
health and safety. It maintains the occupational health
and workplace safety management system and policies
in conformity to the internationally applied occupational
health and safety management systems requirements,
and strictly complies with the relevant regulations in
the PRC. In line with the characteristics of the front-
line production department, the Group has set up a
practical and targeted health and safety management
system, which requires to provide complete protective
measures and equipment to employees who are
exposed to occupational risks. The Group arranges pre-
job occupational health training and regular on-job
occupational health training for employees, provides fire
safety training, and conducts regular safety production
education for employees.

There were no work-related fatalities occurred during
the Reporting Period and the past three years. There
were no lost days due to work-related injuries during
the Reporting Period.

Development and Training

Training is an important way to improve the overall
quality and provide comprehensive development of the
employees. The Group has continuously perfected and
modified the employee training management system,
established a multi-level training system, created various
learning opportunities for its employees, imparted them
production skills, maintenance and repair techniques
and safety awareness, in order to improve their
competence, job skills, knowledge and performance,
promote the business development and achieve business
goals of the Company.

In daily operations, the Group provides induction
training for new employees. Experienced employees
will act as mentors to guide the new comers on jobs.
The Group arranges the trainings designated according
to the roles and responsibilities of the employees,
mainly includes human resources management,
managerial skills, legal affairs, risk management, project
running, financial and auditing, technical research and
development, environmental protection, occupational
health and safety etc. The Group also updates the latest
information of the industry and laws and regulations
which is essential to the Group’s operation and their job
responsibilities from time to time.
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(i)  Percentage of employees trained by gender (i) EMUFIE S EEES XA
Bt
100
80
60 -
40 -
20 -
0 - . !
Female Male
#hE B
(i) Percentage of employees trained by employee (il HEEHFES0ES X
type and average training hours per trained AEBS tt& FEXIES
employee: B 15 15 Bl B 21 -
Average
training
Percentage hours
of employees per trained
Type trained employee
EEZIAE ZIEEW
| Bo FiFINEH
Administrative 100 38
T
Technical 100 52
g
Sales 100 42
HE
Operation and Production 100 51
BEREE
Professional/Specialists 100 35
HEAEEX
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Labour Standards

The Group provides its staff with a safe, health,
comfortable working environment, together with
labour protection, reasonable remuneration and various
welfares. The Group enters into employment contract
with each of its employee in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC and prohibits forced
labour.

The Group strictly abides by laws and regulations
related to child or forced labour, and has achieved
zero employment of child or forced labour during
the year. Every new employee is required to submit a
copy of identity to ensure that he/she meets the age
requirements of the Group and can clearly identify
his/her identity. This policy retrains the hiring of
child or forced labour from the beginning. Thorough
investigations will be conducted for any such practice,
which will be reported to the competent authorities
when appropriate.

OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

To provide top quality services to customers, the Group
carefully sourced its raw materials, packaging materials
and equipment with standardized procurement
procedure and policies. The Group's procurement policy
and its comprehensive procurement management
systems help screen out undesirable products in the
aspects of raw materials, packaging materials and
equipment selection, product formulation, product
packaging, quality management system in factories,
transportation, etc.
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The Group selects suppliers of raw materials, packaging
materials and equipment based on reasonable and
clear criteria, and controls the environmental and
social risks of its supply chain through procurement
requirements. Priority is given to suppliers that purchase
products with advanced processes, provide or use
new energy, advocate environmental protection and
cost reduction, such as reputation, technical skills and
consistent production quality, compliance with industrial
standards, so as to procure superior goods and services
from the most competitive sources. Suppliers are
strictly required to supply products in compliance with
environmental and social laws and regulations. The
Group’s research and development department states
product specification for the suppliers to follow, while
the quality control department performs sample tests to
ensure that goods and materials received by the Group
are in compliance with the quality and specifications
before they are accepted and transferred to the
warehouse.

The Group will select enterprises with a good reputation
for being environmentally and socially responsible and/
or that hold environmental certification, to ensure that
they can meet the requirements of the Group in relation
to the materials and services provided, and minimise
the environmental and social impacts of their business
activities.

The Group places great emphasis on building a
clean organization. At the end of each year, senior
management of the Company will pay visits to
the senior management of its major suppliers for
independent meeting. During those visits, apart
from business negotiations, integrity issue will also
be brought up and the Company's requirements in
accordance with various relevant rules will be reiterated.
Such approach has gained extensive recognition and
support from suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, the major business
segments of the Group had worked closely with 105
suppliers, all of which are located in the PRC and
majority of them are from northern and eastern regions
of the PRC, respectively.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Product Responsibility

The Group has obtained 1SO9001 quality management
system certification. The Group places great emphasis
on the quality of the products, and adopts quality
control measures covering various aspects of the
procurement and production operations to ensure the
Group’s quality system operate in an effective manner.
The Group signs sales contracts with its customers,
which set out product details, specifications, warranty,
conditions of returns, intellectual property, rights and
obligations, etc.. The Group provides sales service and
follow-up service and keeps the information of all
customers in safe custody. During the Reporting Period,
there were no products sold subject to recall for safety
and health reason.

A quality inspection department has been set up to
perform random quality checks for products. Products
will also be sent to the quality inspection department
for regular quality appraisal. If there is any product
recall, the Group will arrange a quality inspector to
visit the client and determine whether there is a quality
issue. If yes, such product will be returned to the
company for warehousing processing, and the quality
inspector will check again whether it can be resold.

The Group deeply understands the importance of
product quality and safety of its products. The Group
has developed policies to ensure that buyers are
satisfied with its products. Procedures and systems
are in place to give timely redress towards any
dissatisfaction reported or discovered. During the
Reporting Period, the Group did not have any record of
complaints or product recalls based on the quality of our
products.

The Group undertakes to comply with the relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC to ensure that the rights and
interests of customers are strictly protected. Information
collected by the Group from its customers would only
be used by the sales department for management.
Other departments are not permitted for the use,
exportation and copy of any customer’s information.
During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have
any material non-compliance with applicable laws and
regulations on health and safety, advertising, labeling
and privacy issues related to the services provided.
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Intellectual Property Rights

The Group is committed to protecting and respecting
intellectual property rights by registering patents for our
products. During the Reporting Period, the Group did
not have any material non-compliance with Patent Law
of the PRC, Trademark Law of the PRC and other laws
and regulations related to intellectual property rights.

Anti-corruption

The Group values credibility and integrity and follows
the principle of fairness in its daily operation. The
management adopts zero-tolerance attitude towards
any forms of corruption, fraud, money laundering,
bribery and extortion in the course of its operations. The
Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations,
such as the Criminal law of the PRC and the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC.

The Group understands the importance of publicizing
anti-corruption to employees. It makes efforts to
communicate and popularize the Company’s in-house
rules and requirements, external laws and regulations
and related knowledge to staff members through
meetings and staff communication activities, etc.,
with a view to highlighting compliance with relevant
laws and regulations, upholding ethical standards
and turndown of temptations. The Group has set up
reporting mailboxes, reporting hotlines, compliance
reporting mailboxes and other channels. Whistleblowers
are able to report by telephone, letter, interview, etc.
The person responsible for handling the reporting is
required to fulfill his/her duties. Any person who has an
interest in the reported matter shall voluntarily avoid. It
is strictly forbidden to disclose the name, unit, address,
etc. of the whistleblower. The Group prohibits any
departments, institutions or individuals from attacking
or retaliating against the whistleblowers in any case,
and the offenders shall be given heavy punishment in
accordance with relevant regulations.

During the Reporting Period, neither the Group nor its
employees were involved in any breach of law or any
legal proceeding in connection of corruption.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Community
Community Investment

The Group always seeks to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates. The management
has been adhering to the idea of building harmony in
society and among community, and leading staff for
active involvement in organizing and strengthening
good community environment, taking active part in
organizing and participating in various social activities
within the community for promoting and building
humanities within harmonious community. The
management has also maintained close communications
and interactions with the communities in order to
contribute to local development.

The Group believes that the creation of a peaceful
community relies on the cooperation of people,
corporations and the government. By working together
with various community partners, the Group believes
it can bring a tremendous impact on the sustainable
development of the communities in which it operates.

The Group will also actively encourage staff to volunteer
their time and skills to benefit local communities. It also
encourages employees to actively participate in social
welfare, volunteer services and community activities in
their spare time, so as to give them the opportunities
to find out more about the issues of the society and
environment and reinforce the Group’s corporate values.

Community Welfare and Volunteer Activities

Care for veterans’ activity: condolences were made to
retired veterans on 1 August, the Army Day, to pay
tribute to the loveliest person, extend holiday greetings
and best wishes to them, and express gratitude for their
important contributions to the country and society.

Firefighting: On 9 November, the Fire Publicity Day,
employees were arranged to attend firefighting training
and publicity activities organized by the community, visit
firefighters and participate in firefighting drills.

World Environment Day: Employees were arranged to
carry out the volunteer activity in the community. Such
activity enabled employees to enhance their awareness
of environmental protection, as well as understand the
importance of environmental protection and remind
employees that environmental protection should
be practiced from every aspect of production and
operation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B RS

n

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHANXI CHANGCHENG
MICROLIGHT EQUIPMENT CO. LTD.

(incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited
liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment
Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 64 to 145,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Because of the significance of the
matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section
of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements. In all other
respects, in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements which mentions that, the Group incurred a loss
of approximately RMB10,375,000 for the year ended 31
December 2023 and as of 31 December 2023, the Group
had net current liabilities and net liabilities of approximately
RMB153,328,000 and RMB108,301,000 respectively. In
addition, the Group had outstanding bank and other
borrowings and amounts due to shareholders amounting
to approximately RMB70,788,000 and RMB23,413,000
respectively, as of 31 December 2023, of which (i) the
bank and other borrowings amounted to approximately
RMB5,413,000 have been overdue for repayments and (ii) the
bank and other borrowings and amount due to shareholders
amounted to approximately RMB6,351,000 and 9,826,000
respectively would be due for repayment within the next
twelve months or on demand, while its cash and cash
equivalents amounted to approximately RMB277,000. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
that may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and therefore the Group may be
unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

The validity of the going concern assumption on which the
consolidated financial statements are prepared is dependent
on the favourable outcomes of the steps being taken by
the Directors as described in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements. Should the going concern assumption
be inappropriate, adjustments may have to be made to reflect
the situation that assets may need to be realised at other
than the amounts at which they are currently recorded in the
consolidated statement of financial position. In addition, the
Group may have to provide for further liabilities that might
arise, and to reclassify non-current assets as current assets.

Up to the date of this report, the Group has entered into
several new sales contracts with several independent third
party customers for the sales of fiber optic products. Due to
limitations in obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidence,
we were unable to verify the availability of adequate funding
sources for the Group to meet the production requirements
of its products and ensure timely delivery to third-party
customers.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & B RS

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (continued)

Material uncertainty related to going concern
(continued)

Furthermore, up to the date of this report, the Group had
notified and requested a settlement arrangement with a bank
with respect to its bank borrowing with principal amount of
approximately RMB6,020,000 and is due for repayment within
the next twelve months. Additionally, the Group is currently in
the process of negotiating a new bank loan of RMB10,000,000
to replace the existing bank loan. As of the date of this report,
we have not been provided with the contract and details
regarding the new loan.

In the absence of sufficient appropriate audit evidence of
the above, we were unable to ascertain whether the use
of the going concern assumption in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is appropriate.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue
an auditor’s report. However, because of the matters described
in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to Provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated
financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wan Ho Yuen

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P04309

Hong Kong, 30 April 2024
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REREREMEZE RS X

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HE-FT - =#+-_HA=+—HILFZE

2023 2022
—_E-= —ZF-=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Mt a7 AR¥Frx ARMTFIT
(Restated)
(&LEF)
REVENUE W = 9 26,717 15,535
Cost of sales §HE R (14,333) (9,578)
Gross profit S 12,384 5,957
Other income, gains and loss, net  E A A - Yo 2k K E518 - R %8 10 8,401 35,481
Selling and distribution expenses HERSHERAX (701) (490)
Reversal of impairment loss/ NTEBZRERBERD
(impairment loss) of: (CREEE) :
— trade receivables, net —ERE SRR FEE 22 2,240 (1,615)
— other receivables — H b fE W IE 23 35 (137)
Administrative and other operating 7}z B4 £ & B 52
expenses (23,802) (23,696)
Finance costs M ER 11 (8,932) (8,293)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBIAT (B518) R F (10,375) 7,207
Income tax expense FriE A 12 - -
(LOSS)/PROFIT AND TOTAL FR(BR) TRAR
COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ 2H(BR) WBEE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 13 (10,375) 7,207
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ L TELEERZ2E (BE)
INCOME FOR THE YEAR W48 %E .
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company ZNNEIE SN (10,392) 7,219
Non-controlling interests FEE AR HE A 17 (12)
(10,375) 7,207
(Loss)/earnings per share AKATREEAELRER
attributable to owners of the (E58E) &R RMB RMB
Company 16 AR¥ AR
(Restated)
(&ZLEF)
— Basic and diluted —BEARNE#EE (0.03) 0.02

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.

Annual Report 2023




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B BRI R

As at 31 December 2023 R-ZE_-_=4F+_H=+—H

31 31 1
December December January
2023 2022 2022
—E-= —E-= —_EFq-—
+=ZA +=A —A
=+—H =+—H —H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR®Fr AREFIT AREKFIT
(Restated)
(&ZLEF)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ - = & &6 17 123,336 115,009 119,423
Right-of-use assets EAEEE 18 9,072 9,365 9,658
Investment in associates REERE 2 E 20 - - -
132,408 124,374 129,081
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 21 13,488 10,148 10,455
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR 3K 22 17,026 7,779 8,486
Prepayments, deposits and FEMRIE - me Rk
other receivables E b W k1B 23 8,471 7,942 5,295
Bank and cash balances RITMIB & &8k 24 277 405 399
39,262 26,274 24,635
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBE
Trade payables JERTE 5 BR K 25 8,707 9,045 8,638
Accruals and other payables JE &t TR IE Ko EL A FE 1 5RIE 26 154,728 124,353 110,374
Contract liabilities SHAE 27 5,365 5,928 5,522
Amounts due to shareholders JE A< % 3R 2k IR 28 9,826 9,062 20,284
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 29 11,764 16,052 93,708
Deferred government grants BEB T E B 30 2,200 2,237 2,250
192,590 166,677 240,776
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEETHE (153,328) (140,403) (216,141)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #AEERREBERE
LIABILITIES (20,920) (16,029) (87,060)
WA RBMASEM BB ERAT

SRR



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRIk R &

As at 31 December 2023 R-ZE-=#+_-HA=+—H

31 31 1
December December January
2023 2022 2022
—E-= —E-= -
+=ZA +=A —A
=+—H =+—H —H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
it AR®Fr AREFIT ARKFIT
(Restated)
(ZLEF)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Amounts due to shareholders JiE A< % 3R Fk 1B 28 13,587 11,822 2,382
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 29 59,024 52,545 -
Deferred government grants BIEB T E B 30 14,770 17,530 19,767
87,381 81,897 22,149
NET LIABILITIES EEFEE (108,301) (97,926) (109,209)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRRAE
Share capital AR 31 30,886 30,886 30,886
Reserves G 32 (139,076) (128,684) (139,979)
Deficit attributable to owners RARER AFEMLEA
of the company (108,190) (97,798)  (109,093)
Non-controlling interests EL g Fa (111) (128) (116)
TOTAL DEFICIT ON EQUITY R E A (108,301) (97,926) (109,209)

FOAR4SE MG AR BEREN - -
FUAZt+HEES=SHETRETE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 64 to 145 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

30 April 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: WHNATEERREZE:
Approved by:
ERE KK
Director Director
EF EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REREaR® X

For the year ended 31 December 2023 B Z_-FT_=F+-_H=1+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ADTREARL
Statutory Non- Total
Share Capital surplus Other Accumulated controlling  deficit on
capital reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
EERH

Bx  EXfER B RbRE%E  ZHER gt FEREE AR
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBOO0  AMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMB00O
ARETT ARRTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2022 as MEASHN-Z--F

previously reported -A-H 30,886 18,561 11,860 981 (176,592)  (114,304) (116)  (114,420)
Retrospective restatements & &7 (#f:#5)

(note 5) - - - - 5211 5211 - 5211

At 1 January 2022 (as restated) R=Z--F-F—H

(m&7) 30,886 18,561 11,860 981 (171381)  (109,093) (116)  (109,209)
Profit/(loss) and total EmEfl/ (B8R
comprehensive ks (BB LE
income/(loss) for the year (BE5)
(restated) - - - - 7219 7219 (1) 7207
Fair value gain arising from ~~ REEHEL 2 ATEKE
shareholders’ loan (note 28(1)  (Hiz28() - - - 4,076 - 4,076 - 4,076
Transferred from other reserve  BEMERERZ ZAER
to accumulated losses - - - (981) 981 - - -
At 31 December 2022 RZFZZETCR
(as restated) =+-H(&E7) 30,886 18,561 11,860 4,076 (163,181) (97,798) (128) (97,926)
At 1 January 2023 R-E-ZF-8-H 30,886 18,561 11,860 4,076 (163,181) (97,798) (128) (97,926)
(Loss)/profit and total EQ(BR)/8HR2E
comprehensive (B8)/ hais
(loss)income for the year - - - - (103%)  (1039) 17 (10375)
At 31 December 2023 RZE-=F
TZA=t-H 30,886 18,561 11,860 4,076 (173,573) (108,190 (111)  (108,301)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

2023 2022
—E=-= —E=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥®FT ARKETFT
(Restated)
(&%)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBCRERE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELET (ER) 7 (10,375) 7,207
Adjustments for: AT ZIEMEL AL
Depreciation of property, plant ME - -WEREZETE
and equipment 4,790 4,316
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 293 293
Deferred government grants released BzEiEn BB EB)
to profit or loss (3,567) (2,250)
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWME BER&EBE2 KE
and equipment (4,624) (272)
Interest income MEWA (1 (M)
Finance costs % E R 8,932 8,293
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ U E ZERFK 2
impairment loss of trade receivables CREEERR) TREESE (2,240) 1,615
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ Hith fE W TE 2
impairment loss of other receivables (REBERD) RESRE (35) 137
(Reversal of impairment loss)/ REtERBIZIRE Z
Impairment loss on investment in CRERBERE) TREEE
an associate (281) 88
Waiver of interests payable % bR FE R FE - (22,647)
Fair value gain on other borrowings Hinfg B2 A FERZE - (10,184)
Operating loss before working KRETHER
capital changes KREtEELESRY (7,108) (13,405)
Change in inventories FEEE (3,340) 307
Change in trade receivables FEWE 5 RHE S (7,007) (908)
Change in prepayments, deposit and TET FRIE - iR & N CH fth fE IR
other receivables g (494) (2,784)
Change in trade payables JETE SRR E (338) 407
Change in accruals and other payables  JE&T & 3 K H b & (< FR B & & 17,602 15,615
Change in contract liabilities SHEEES (563) 406
Net cash used in operating activities &E& %A BESFHE (1,248) (362)

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE_—ZFE_-=#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

2023 2022
—E=-= —ZE=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARKFT
(Restated)
(#&E5)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZBZHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Payment for purchase of property, BEMHE WELZE
plant and equipment (507) (41)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - WFEREEMEHRIE
plant and equipment 4,787 411
Government grants received 2 BT 6 B 770 -
Interest received 2 A& 1
Repayment from/(advance to) an BRE/ (B2RT) —REEQA
associate 281 (88)
Net cash generated from investing RETZEHAELE
activities HEFEE 5,332 283
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METE2HERE
ACTIVITIES
Advance from shareholders RERRE 2,175 1,150
Other borrowings raised HAibfE féfZﬁfr?aE'wik 481 -
Repayment to shareholders ) R BR 2% 7K (1,140) (170)
Repayment of bank and other MITREMET 2 ERK
borrowings (5.154) (70)
Interest paid ERFE (574) (825)
Net cash (used in)/generated from MEETE (FTH) FEL
financing activities H& 38 (4,212) 85
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH iﬁ%&fﬁ%%{alﬁ =l
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS WMA) iR EE (128) 6
Cash and cash equivalents at EAE%ﬂZfﬁi&EEAMTEIE =
beginning of year 405 399
Cash and cash equivalents at RELRZRERESEE
end of year HHE 277 405
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERRESHEBEBERIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIRBA 277 405
WA RBMEEMRODBERAR

—E-=f
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd. (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"”) on 10 November 2000 as a joint
stock limited company. The Company’s H shares are listed
on Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM") of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
with affect from 18 May 2004. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company is No.7 Dianzi street, Demonstration Zone,
ShanXi, The PRC.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) were
principally engaged in design, research, development,
manufacture and sale of image transmission fiber optic
products. The principal activities of the Company's
subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company.

GOING CONCERN BASIS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group incurred a loss of
approximately RMB10,375,000 for the year ended 31
December 2023 and the Group had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of approximately RMB153,328,000
and RMB108,301,000 respectively. In addition, the
Group had outstanding bank and other borrowings
and amounts due to shareholders amounting to
approximately RMB70,788,000 and RMB23,413,000
respectively, as at 31 December 2023, of which (i) the
bank and other borrowings amounted to approximately
RMB5,413,000 have been overdue for repayments and
(ii) the bank and other borrowings and amount due to
shareholders amounted to approximately RMB6,351,000
and RMB9,826,000 respectively would be due for
repayment within the next twelve months or repayment
on demand while its cash and cash equivalents amounted
to gpproximately RMB277,000. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern and therefore the Group may be unable
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

GOING CONCERN BASIS (continued)

The directors of the Company have been taking steps
to improve the liquidity position of the Group. These
steps include (i) negotiating and implementing debts
restructuring plan with shareholders, borrowers and
bankers; (ii) negotiating and implementing loan interest
reduction plan with shareholders and borrowers; (iii)
seeking financial support from substantial shareholders
and borrowers; and (iv) seeking and communicating with
new customers on the sales of fiber optic products.

Provided that these measures can successfully improve
the liquidity position of the Group, the Directors are
satisfied that the Group will be able to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis. Should
the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down
the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current
assets and liabilities. The effect of these adjustments
has not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 January 2023. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”); Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. The
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result
in significant changes to the Group’s accounting policies,
presentation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and amounts reported for the current year
and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The application of
these new HKFRSs will not have material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

2.

REKERE (&)
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[
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MERE-—FRE UKFERDEE
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WRA

R RAEBTE BB
wEEL
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RIAAMBREEN BT EHAKE
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, and the applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgements in the process of applying
the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgements and areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to these consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The material accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The Group has power over an entity when
the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties, to determine whether it has control. A
potential voting right is considered only if the holder has
the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date the control ceases.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE_—ZFE_-=#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Consolidation (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net assets
of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating
to that subsidiary and any related accumulated exchange
fluctuation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between
the non-controlling shareholders and owners of the
Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling shareholders
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control
over those policies. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess
of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested
for impairment together with the investment at the
end of each reporting period when there is objective
evidence that the investment is impaired. Any excess of
the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Associates (continued)

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss, and its share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently
reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share
of those profits only after its share of the profits equals
the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the consideration
of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that associate and (ii) the Group's share of the net
assets of that associate plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that associate and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment in
an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture,
the Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in RMB, which is the Company’s presentation
currency and the functional currency of the principal
operating subsidiaries of the Group.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERSHBE (&)

(continued)
INERE (F)
(iii) FERBEZRE

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation currency
as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the exchange rates on the
transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the exchange fluctuation
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost less
their residual values over the estimated useful lives on
a straight-line basis. The principal useful lives are as
follows:
Buildings 50 years or over lease terms,
whichever is shorter
Leasehold improvements 10 years or over the lease
terms, whichever is shorter

Plant and machinery 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognized in profit or loss.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

EREREE(F)

W% BE M RERERARE R
BB ERERYIAR-

BREKANEERENEZEBAHLZ
ARERLEME B RANEE xR
B ZARER] SEst ERFFABERE
B ERABILEE (WER) - A
Hipgie Mg m EEE BN R
R

M BB KRR ITE R R AN
HAR FIREE Z LR - REETA]
FHRFHUNESETE - E0FEA
FHIINT

BF 504F = H
(ABREERE)

HEWREKE 105HHH
(ABEERE)

B 104
REREE 5E104
RE 54

RNEBRESHR RREE AIERF
HIRFrE RS ETRN RFEE (1
)

HEWE  BE MRl 2 Was sk E 18
T EMSHRIRFREEREERE
BzRHE5E YR EERER -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding lease liabilities when the leased assets
are available for use by the Group. Right-of-use assets
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Depreciation of right-of-use assets is
calculated at rates to write off their cost over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. The principal useful lives are as follows:

Land use rights 50 years or over lease terms,

whichever is shorter

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities,
lease payments prepaid, initial direct costs and the
restoration costs. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the lease payments discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease if that rate can be determined,
or otherwise the Group's incremental borrowing rate.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease
liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Short-term leases are leases with an initial lease term of
12 months or less. Low-value assets are assets of value
below US$5,000.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received is recognised in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE_—ZFE_-=#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the
case of investments at fair value through profit or loss.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified under financial
assets at amortised cost.

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

—  the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less loss allowance for
expected credit losses.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit
losses, on financial assets at amortized cost. Expected
credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses
with the respective risks of a default occurring as the
weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures
the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an
amount equal to the expected credit losses that result
from all possible default events over the expected life
of that financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit
losses”) for trade receivables and other receivables, or if
the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk
on a financial instrument (other than trade receivables,
contract assets and lease receivables) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit
losses that represents the expected credit losses that
result from default events on that financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting
period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust
the loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to
the required amount is recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment gain or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies
adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

EREFREE (&)

RERBREEEER
mEeRERMNS ReELBREFE
HEBRRBITLTFHEARS FRIET
KBt & B 2R BTF 5 A KR A
pERER S NBEReMERE
R AAKZESNERABERE AR
EREEIBNASERSEERD
ZRTBEX DA AR MRS FER
BZ—#n-

SHEBBERRAIA

SRABRRATARBERITLAY
THEHRB R BBV BERELENT 2
MEBRRATENFERETOE:
BARTEABRAAEBMNGEFREE
EREBETRGESRZTIMNAH-
UTEHI S TeMmAaERRATA
FTER#N Z @5t IERER -

BE

BENTRATE (HEMEEZR
SR ) HER - RIRERAERAN AR
BHA ARG E

EEREARDAE RIFLXEEE
BEGGENATSEERE 2 BRI
BEEmEMRED12(8A -

BB 5 R K H Al FE A 5KOR
BN E SRR R EMEN KB FiZ
NFEER ERARAERNERZX
HEEHRATE MR YETIE
R RIS RN F B

RATA
RRFETZRATRRKEZ 5
RIREMRERBITRARIIR-

WE R AL B RO ERA T
—Eo=FEH

83



8

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with reference to
the customary business practices and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract where
the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised product or service exceeds
one year, the consideration is adjusted for the effect of a
significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the terms
of a contract and the laws that apply to that contract, a
performance obligation can be satisfied over time or at a
point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over
time if:

—  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance;

—  the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

—  the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue
is recognised by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the product or service.

Other revenue

Bank interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Employee benefits

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group
to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

4. EXRGFHBEEK(4F)

BERF

() EEEEZUHR
BEFBLERARBENEES
BRBREER - ~AAREHER
BEERERRZMREFHAESR
FRERHRGBRIE AAE
ZEEFELEE-

IE B AR R B E R RS
TR

(i) EBIKZEE
AEERPTARERTERHIE
IRETBIHR - AEE MRS 25t
HFBREREEAFEZAD
LoEt & - IR MR R KE MG
RN ARRAEBARMES

Z B o

(iii) #ALLEHAEF
I YR Rz SE TR s
s SR RSB EREEK
AR B 3T A 4 LE 18 P AR I B
(LB REHA%E)ER -

BERAE

WE 2ERLEEREREE (AL
FEL-—BEREHETEERLETERS
HHEZEE)EERREZEERAR
PRAER ERLFEEERAZ —
My BEHFEEARLCAER
BREMRGIHERL -BEREEER
ERFAEREEZHXAERER
EMRBNKRERAEAGEREARL
ZAEE AR kR

WE R AL B RO ERA T
—Eo=FEH

85



86

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs (continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised consolidated
statement of in profit or loss in the period in which they
are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets
are deducted from the carrying amount of the assets.
The grant is recognised in profit or loss over the life of
a depreciable asset by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE_—ZFE_-=#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except when it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the consolidated financial statements
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purpose of allocating resources and
assessing the performance of the Group’s various lines of
business.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE_—ZFE_-=#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXEHBE(E)
(continued)
Related parties 2]l
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the T REANEBRAENEAXE
Group. fiS o
(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family (@) —BEASEIFEBERA/RE
is related to the Group if that person: B RAEE 7 - Rz EA
() has control or joint control over the Group; (i) BB 5 R4 AR &
;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or (i BEHAEEBRERY
-
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel (i) BARAXARRFRAF
of the Company or of a parent of the Company. HWEREEAB-
(b) An enity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if (b) —EEEEKHAR AN B AR
any of the following conditions applies: F(MEER) WZEBFE
TN E—1BR
()  The entity and the Company are members () ZEBEARAIRBRA %
of the same group (which means that each EARKERF (BEHE
parent, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries is /NEIRNG= /D\ CISAEES
related to the others). bt B~ B9 B 4R & B
7)o
(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture iy —REAEEAES TR
of the other entity (or an associate or joint ERRAZEERNA (KA
venture of a member of a group of which the E%%IEX BERAINEBER
other entity is a member). 57 gAaERrE B —%F
E%‘El}ﬂi,@\ NCIDIC
(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same iy MEEEHAEB—F=H
third party. BEERA e
(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy, —HEEBAE=7THEE
and the other entity is an associate of the third ARAIBES—BEBAR%LSE
entity. sl z0): A /NI
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #ZE_-F—

4. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

=F+HA=1+—HIFE

4, EREFTHE ()

(continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to a
parent of the Company.

Impairment of assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
except inventories and receivables to determine whether
there is any indication that these assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment of assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit ("“CGU") is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or CGU is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in consolidated statement of
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or CGU is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset or CGU in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in consolidated statement of profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

EREFREE (&)
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.

RESTATEMENT DUE TO PRIOR YEAR
CORRECTION

In preparing the Group’'s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group has identified certain errors in the comparative
financial information presented. The Group has restated
some prior year amounts. A detailed description of the
nature of restatements is shown as below.

Re-assessment of (impairment loss)/reversal of
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment

During the year ended 31 December 2021, in view
of the continuous operating losses sustained by the
Group, the management of the Group conducted
impairment assessments on the Group’s property, plant
and equipment (note 17) with reference to valuations of
the assets as valued by an independent external valuer
based on the estimated replacement cost. The change of
valuation technique raised a impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment amounting to RMB5,211,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

RESTATEMENT DUE TO PRIOR YEAR
CORRECTION (continued)

Re-assessment of (impairment loss)/reversal of
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, in view of the
continuous operating losses sustained by the Group, the
management carried out impairment assessments based
on the market approach. The valuation resulted in the
recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
higher than its carrying amount, thus a reversal of
impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
amounting to RMB5,211,000 for the year ended 31
December 2022 was recognized in profit and loss.

The management, based on the valuation performed by
an independent third-party valuer dated 17 May 2023,
on its property, plant and equipment as of 31 December
2021 based on the market approach, is of the view that
should the 2021 valuation be valued under the market
approach, the recoverable amount of property, plant
and equipment as at 31 December 2021 should be
higher than its carrying amount, and thus, no provision
for impairment should be made for the year ended 31
December 2021. Accordingly, reversal should not be
made for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The following tables disclose the restatements that have
been made in order to reflect the above corrections to
each of the line items in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
previously reported for the year ended 31 December
2022 and consolidated statement of financial position as
at 1 January 2022 as previously reported.

5.

HBEFEEEMEY (&)

ME BERREZ (REESR)
WERBERD 2 BTG (F)

HE—_ZT-_—_F+=-A=+—HILF
B ERAEBEFEHRGLEEE"
EREERBEMB AETREN G-
HEESHWE WEMEKE2TRE
cHEEREREE ALEBE_F
—HF+—A=Z+—HLFEWE-
MELEEBEzZRERBERR AR
5,211,000 B RN E = FER ©

REBYE=NHEMR_F_=F
TA+EAREMSEHERE
E_—Ft-_A=t+— EZ%%J@
FEREREETH/E EEER
ﬁ_v_*iﬁﬁmﬁm%iLﬁﬁ
b AR —E-—F+-A=+—H
ZWE BB RRE 2 E S EE
Emﬁﬁﬁﬁjﬂi@i_z:

TE%’%(% - BE = T“i‘f“
A=t—BLEFEAEELELD-

TERBEBAERMAEHZBE-F
T+ -_A=Z+—BLEEZES

B kEME2mEERAR (LR
ER)EE_TE_—_F—A—HZK
BUMBEARRPEIBE 2 LM E IEM
fEHZ &S

mﬁﬁiﬁwtasmwﬁmm 93
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

RESTATEMENT DUE TO PRIOR YEAR
CORRECTION (continued)

Re-assessment of (impairment loss)/reversal of
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment

(continued)

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December

5. EBEFEEEMES (&)

ME BERREZ (REESR)
WERBERD 2 BTG (F)

BzixeBaMEM2EWER

2022.
Re-assessment
of reversal
of impairment
loss of property,
plant and
2022 equipment 2022
¥ BERRK
RZREBER
ZRICF EZEHAML e 2
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT AREFT
(As previously
reported) (Restated)
(MERZ2H) (LE51)
REVENUE & 15,535 15,535
Cost of sales HERA (9,578) (9,578)
Gross profit EF 5,957 5,957
Other income, gains and loss, net HiA - W kBB 58 35,481 35,481
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAZ (490) (490)
Reversal of impairment loss of mE - BE R REE B
property, plant and equipment 5211 (5,211) -
Impairment loss of: NTEEZREBE:
- trade receivables, net -EWEFET FE (1,615) (1,615)
- other receivables —H iR RIE (137) (137)
Administrative and other operating TR M EE4RH %
expenses (23,696) (23,696)
Finance costs HBER (8,293) (8,293)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR AT R 12,418 7,207
Income tax expense MY - -

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

RESTATEMENT DUE TO PRIOR YEAR

CORRECTION (continued)

Re-assessment of (impairment loss)/reversal of

impairment loss of property, plant and equipment

5. EBEFEEEMES (&)

ME BERREZ (REESR)
WERBERD 2 BTG (F)

(continued)
Re-assessment
of reversal
of impairment
loss of property,
plant and
2022 equipment 2022
ER - E
BZREFRR
ZRICF EZEBEHAMG —RCCF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT ARETFT
(As previously
reported) (Restated)
(MER28]) (8=51)
PROFIT AND TOTAL FREARZEKREE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 12,418 7,207
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE UTEEERZE
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE W,/ (BB 8.
YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company ARAEEA 12,430 7,219
Non-controlling interests FERER (12) (12)
12,418 7,207
RMB RMB
(As previously (Restated)
reported)
AR® AR#
(MERMER) (&=E35))
Earnings per share attributable to A2 REEAEEEREF
owners of the Company
- Basic and diluted —EAREE 0.04 0.02
A REMEM BB ERAR

—R-=FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

5. RESTATEMENT DUE TO PRIOR YEAR

CORRECTION (continued)

Re-assessment of (impairment loss)/reversal of
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment

(continued)

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 1

January 2022

HBEFEEEMES (&)

ME BERREZ (REESR)
WERBERD 2 BTG (F)

R-ZBZ—F—-A—-HZHEAUHNK
IR

Re-assessment

1 January of impairment
2022 loss of property, 1 January
(As previously plant and 2022
reported) equipment (Restated)
ZECZCE NE - BER ZECCF
—-A—-H REZHEESR —HA—H
(MERT2H]K) ZEH T (BE5)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFL
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERR 114,212 5,211 119,423
Right-of-use assets FRESE 9,658 9,658
Investment in associates REERRZRE - -
123,870 129,081
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories & 10,455 10,455
Trade receivables EWE S 8,486 8,486
Prepayments, deposits and other BARE  &e REMERE
receivables 5,295 5,295
Bank and cash balances RITRREHEH 399 399
24,635 24,635
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables BB RN 8,638 8,638
Accruals and other payables FEETE I Hofh e FUIE 110,374 110,374
Contract liabilities BHEE 5,522 5,522
Amounts due to shareholders JER IR R TR IB 20,284 20,284
Bank and other borrowings BOREMES 93,708 93,708
Deferred government grants RIEBTE B 2,250 2,250
240,776 240,776
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #

RESTATEMENT DUE TO PRIOR YEAR

CORRECTION (continued)

Re-assessment of (impairment loss)/reversal of
impairment loss of property, plant and equipment

(continued)

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 1

January 2022 (continued)

2-FEC

5. EBEFEEEMES (&)

ME BERREZ (REESR)
WERBERD 2 BTG (F)

RZEZ - A HZEAUHN
MK (&)

Re-assessment

1 January of impairment
2022 loss of property, 1 January
(As previously plant and 2022
reported) equipment (Restated)
—g-=f ¥ BER  -%==f
—-B—-H REZHEESR —-A—H
(MERER) 2B (REF])
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF ARETL AREFL
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEETE (216,141) (216,141)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBDAE
LIABILITIES (92,271) (87,060)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kREEE
Amounts due to shareholders JET AR R 508 2,382 2,382
Deferred government grants ELHTE B 19,767 19,767
22,149 22,149
NET LIABILITIES BERE (114,420) (109,209)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRfRE
Share capital [ 30,886 30,886
Reserves 1 (145,190) 5,211 (139,979)
Deficit attributable to owners of the AARIEE ANELEL
company (114,304) (109,093)
Non-controlling interests FrkER (116) (116)
TOTAL DEFICIT ON EQUITY EEEganm (114,420) (109,209)
WA RBM B RBERAT

—R-=FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

6. CRITICAL JUDGMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES
Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgments that have

the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.

(a) Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon the favourable outcomes of
the steps being taken by the directors as described
in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

(a) Property plant and equipment, depreciation
and impairment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group's property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been above abandoned or
sold.

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is determined with reference
to the present value of estimated future cash flows.
Where the future cash flows are less than expected
or there are unfavourable events and change in
facts and circumstance which result in revision of
future estimate cash flows, a material impairment
loss may arise.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2023

BASEH T R EE M5

FE P& Bt UK B B8 4 ) I
REREHBRMNBRES EFFH
U TEHREGEEMBRERANERZEHE
BERBERTEmH -

(a) HEAKEREE

LR A M HRRRFELER
ERE AEDAREURNGE
A 75 R 2R Y RE 2 Pl 2 S P BRER
EHER B IUSRIFAR

]
AN
VN
1)

TREMTZEERR

TXEBEBAARRZEBRELNHRE
HRZ G T RPAERZ A ERR
R MzEREERBEAFEEET
—WMRFEzEERBERAEEZRE
HEBAFHBZEXRAR (T XFH

i)

(a) W¥ BMERLE TERH
]
AEBBEEDE BHEERB
ZIEETAIE R FISREEMN
KRBT ER X - AT IIRE
HEERDERILIZYE BFE R
REZERAERFHRFSRE
B2 BELRMEL - Bl EH
FHEFSEERRTETED
[RIRS - A B g BT E R SOETT
MERE  HEBRIMBE XD
MBS E 2 FER I B EME K
R -

BEAEHRBERBLBTREE
REEBEE AIKRE SRR K
SEEERYE BELARER
BHIRRE - AT E S FE2RTA
HARAEZREZREET
AXBRERELNEM HEH
THEERBERECBHARERT
ARMEARSRE QIR REEL
EREERE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %

CRITICAL JUDGMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(b) Provision of ECL for trade and other

(c)

receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade and other receivables. The provision rates
are based on internal credit ratings as groupings
of various debtors that have similar loss patterns.
The provision matrix is based on the Group’s
historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs
or effort. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered.
In addition, trade and retention receivables and
contract assets with significant balances and
credit impaired receivables are assessed for ECL
individually. The provision of ECL is sensitive to
changes in estimates.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expense. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the
historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions. The Group will reassess the estimates by the end
of each reporting period.

SEC=HfZ A= ALFE

6. BARMNERETEMG (&)
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

During the reporting period, the capital structure of the
Group consists of debt which includes interest-bearing
loans and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves. The
directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the associated risks and take appropriate
actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
periods.

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios, so that it can continue to provide returns
for the shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debts. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Management regards total equity as capital, for capital
management purpose. The amount of deficit attributable
to owners of the Company as at 31 December 2023
amounted to approximately RMB108,190,000 (2022:
RMB97,798,000), which the management considers
as optimal having considered the projected capital
expenditures and the projected strategic investment
opportunities.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2023

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

EXEERR
AEEEEREERN EHEBBEBR
HgEGfFH&ETE BRAEHE
MERAFELE TARRAES
ZNEIE &

RBEHE AEB 2 ERNSBRE
B (BEFEERE) RARAER A
iz (BREZBTRALGER)
MK -BEFTEHRIENEE-ER
ZmE e R EFEEEARKNAR
MHERR WRBUEE TN FER
KB ENGERE NEE 2 EERA
B 51 B B ) A 5 1N o

AEBEAERZ T ZBNARER
SEERENFELEUARERIBRZ
BALER REBREERERGEE
EBMRAEEKRNETRE EAKE
BE A A8 1) R R £t [0 3R N A LA i 25
HEEE R

REBBBELBEMRROSE RBHE
ENRBECEREE ANEREIT It
ICAFEE o Rk TR E R
AEBESEABRRLT TREZKRES
BMBTHR O REEATRE -E&
NEGERENHEEENRDER -
NEBETZEMINED I E R E
IR -BHEZE—TE-_=FR_FT-__F
+-A=Z+—BLHFE BAEEZ
BH BRKEFFW EES -

ABEEEN EEEBHERABERA
BR-R-_E-_ZF+_A=+—
B ARaHEBARLEASEAEY
AR#108,190,0007T (— T = —4:
AR #97,798,00000) - BB E
B EARI RTE R AR
BREEBERE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 7. EXEEERE (&)
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, NEERBLABE FHEBRAEARLETE
which is net debt divided by the total capital plus net MEBEFEAESENERGEERR
debt. Net debt includes trade payables, accruals and EREER-ERFEPERNE SR
other payables, amounts due to shareholders and bank o REET BE KA M AN FRIE - BT
and other borrowing less cash and cash equivalents. IRERRIBARRITREMEE BE
Total capital includes deficit attributable to owners of ReELBEEEER BEARBEERE
the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of the RAGIHEB ANEIEBAL - NIREER
reporting period were as follows: ZERBEERMAT:
2023 2022
—EB-=F —F--
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARKF T
Trade payables B E SRR 8,707 9,045
Accruals and other payables JE &t R I8 K H A FE A 5RIB 154,728 124,353
Amounts due to shareholders JFE < % B8 2k I8 23,413 20,884
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEE 70,788 68,597
Less: Cash and cash equivalents BoReRAEEMEIER (277) (405)
Net debt B F 5 257,359 222,474
Deficit attributable to owners of the RANBHEA AEEEA
Company (108,190) (97,798)
Capital and net debt BARREBFEE 149,169 124,676
Gearing ratio BERBER 173% 178%
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 8. MEERERE

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets
and liabilities are principally denominated in the
functional currencies of the Group entities. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

REBEBEESCTHAESREV KR
2 SNERR  EERR RBETR
B RMERRE AEENBEERRE
BIHASRTRE/H SN A AR
Ko 3 5K S A S 1B B 95 5 B AR P ) 7
EAMEEREHE-

(a) SpEmEEE
HRRHBOEBRS BERE
EXBUAKEER RN
SIME - BN ER B P A 2 SN L
OB E &K - A5 [E B AL 5L
INER 5 BERBBRIINE
MK AEEHEYERA
SMNERLER - W AS T T BB B
B K SN [ 2

WE R AL B RO ERA T
—Eo=FEH
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

(b) Credit risk

The carrying amount of the bank and cash balances
and trade and other receivables, included in the
statement of financial position represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to the Group’s financial assets.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had concentration
of credit risk relating to its customers as the
amounts due by the Group’'s largest debtor
of approximately RMB9,513,000 (2022:
RMB3,606,000) and the Group’s largest three
debtors of approximately RMB16,424,000 (2022:
RMB7,076,000) at 31 December 2023 represent
approximately 56% (2022: 46%) and 96% (2022:
91%) respectively of the Group’s total trade
receivables at that date.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made
to customers with an appropriate credit history.
Amounts due from related companies are closely
monitored by the directors.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances and
derivative financial instruments is limited because
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group considers whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of financial assets
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period by comparing the risk of a default occurring
as at the reporting date with the risk of default
as at the date of initial recognition. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forward-looking
information. Especially the following information is
used:

- internal credit rating;

— actual or expected significant changes in the
operating results of the borrower;

—  significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including
changes in the payment status of borrowers.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

8. MBEMERE (&)

(b)

EERE
SEAMEIR R 2 ] & MIRTT
REERDA N B B 5 B R S B At &
WA REESARESHE
EZBEANEERR -

N_E-_=F+-_A=+—H"
rEBEEREKFPFEESETHNE
EBREE AN-_Z-_=%+=-A4
=+ —BAAEEZKREBAER
&5 4 AR ¥9,513,00000 (—
T - —F: AR%3,606,0007T)
RAREB = KREHARNSELD
AR¥16,424,000c (ZE ==
& AR#7,076,0007T) 2 BME
Rz A AL B EWKE Z R B
B #956% ( — T~ —F:46% )
$96% (ZE == F:91%)

AEEFIBRER  BRAASE
EERBRZEPIFHHEE-EF
EYEREREERRRIEA-

RN R 5% 77 BB B PR
BIESEEREENMRZR
7 BRI MASERZEER
RAMR -

AEBLBeMEENRSE B H
ZEDRRERTGEERBRL
EHORE  NZBEEEFN G
BMEEZFERBREESNESRE
HA K088 N - NS B 76 E B P
BRERAEBERZAENE
o LEERTIIER:

- RBMEEFR:

- ERESERRRGAZE
KEE BIEEH 2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE_—ZFE_-=#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 8. BXEMER (&)
(continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERK (&)

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a
contractual payment. A default on a financial asset
is when the counterparty fails to make contractual
payments within 90 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group. The Group normally categorises a loan or
receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make
contractual payments greater than 270 days past
due. Where loans or receivables have been written
off, the Group, if practicable and economical,
continues to engage in enforcement activity to
attempt to recover the receivable due.

The Group uses two categories for non-trade loan
receivables which reflect their credit risk and how
the loan loss provision is determined for each of the
categories. In calculating the expected credit loss
rates, the Group considers historical loss rates for
each category and adjusts for forward looking data.

w3 k& N Rz B A B R
B30H - AR EEERR AR
e B8RS4 HEENEIHI%90
HAXf5E AlemEELR
EH o

CREENABERE XKD
(PlanfE# A EAEAREBIEN
BIETED R - WEBAR
BEEBIE270B B RKREBITAL
H% AEBBRESHHEEHRE
TRk B U FRIE o fin B 3Nk B UK
EM% BIAREE (EEBRATT
MBS ZBERT)BE
EREN R #1178 & B Uk =] B 2R pE Uk
FRIE -

AEBEFIFE ZREEKER N
ERER - A S iR B AZ B e e g
MR BEAEEES Eﬁ%@?ﬁéﬁ
AFERBEEBRERE AR
ZERENZELBEERE . IM
RIRE BB E L -

Category Category Loss provision

5l 5l BEEE

Performing Low risk of default and strong 12 month expected losses
capacity to pay

R4f 3B AR B AR T R BE ) 9 1216 A e HA & 18

Non-performing Significant increase in credit risk Lifetime expected losses
TR (B EL R T HITEERE 1R

RZE—=ZFR_F-_—_F+—=
A=+—HB A&EEITEIIFZS
JEWE R -

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group do
not have non-trade loan receivables.

m&ﬁﬁta&ﬁgggmm 1 03
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %

8.

TE -+ - A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

BEERER (&)

(continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (0 REBELEMR
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current AEBZBERTEHEEBMR
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that FEHORBESF R  BERAK
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its ERFRBEIRBKE - AR
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. R REHORBEST R
The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted rEESHMABERABEREN
cash flows, of the Group’'s financial liabilities is as REIERRE ST T
follows:
Weighted Repayable More than More than
average  on demand Tyearbut  2yearsbut Total
interest or less than less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
31 December 2023 rate 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
REX 185k 2N AER
ZRIZE+ZAZt+-A T E AHME BHR2E EHW5E  BEMELE RAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT AREFT ARETZ AREFZ
Trade payables ERE5EH - 8,707 - - 8,707 8,707
Accruals and other payables  EFF SR REMENFE - 154,728 - - 154,728 154,728
Amounts due to shareholders  ERREFTE 0%-5.12% 9,855 319 15,578 25,152 2343
Bank and other borrowings ROREMEE 2%-30% 13,145 - 79,459 92,604 70,788
186,435 319 95,037 281,791 257,636
Weighted Repayable More than More than
average on demand 1 year but 2 years but Total
interest —or less than less than less than ~ undiscounted Carrying
31 December 2022 rate 1 year 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
FEX 1M E 2N E AER
S gy o = MEFIHE ek BHR2E EARSE  RERELE HHE
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AREFT  AEETT  ARETT  AREfT  ARETR
Trade payables ERESER - 9,045 - - 9,045 9,045
Accruals and other payables  ERTHUE REMEN A - 124,353 - - 124,353 124,353
Amounts due to shareholders T RE 5B 0%-5.12% 9,074 13 18,359 27,446 20,384
Bank and other borowings R REMEE 2%-30% 16,839 385 84,404 101,628 68,597
159,311 398 102,763 262,472 222,879

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2023




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF
8. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 8. MKRKRER (&)
(continued)
(d) Interest rate risk (d) FEEE

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities, the Group’s operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in

market interest rates.

HRAEEN BB R BEER
BfE AKEZ

PEMGHERBNTE-

REmER

(e) Categories of financial instruments (e) EWMITAZSE
2023 2022
—E=-= —ZE=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FRT ARKEFIT
Financial assets: cTRMEE:
Financial assets at amortised cost R HKX A ECLESMEE
— Trade receivables — W E SRR 17,026 7,779
— Deposits and other receivables —te e R H M EKFIE 7,798 5,167
— Bank and cash balances —RITRIRB AR 277 405
25,101 13,351
Financial liabilities: cREes:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R KA ECZ SR BE
— Trade payables —EREZER 8,707 9,045
— Accruals and other payables — R AFEETRIE K E b AT
REZEZHMAE 154,728 124,353
— Amounts due to shareholders — I IR KIE 23,413 20,884
- Bank and other borrowings —“RITEREMEE 70,788 68,597
257,636 222,879
(f) Fair value ) AF¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial RERE AR AR AR 2 AN &

EemEEMEMABIEREE
HEZBHAFERE-

assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.

WA RBMAEEMROBRD A
SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT 9. RERKEEIEEHR
INFORMATION
The Group’s revenue and results from business were REBXBEEZWENFEEFENR
mainly derived from its sale of fiber optic inverters, fiber BHE R AR HBER
optic straight plates, fiber optic face plates, fiber optic AR ?ﬁﬁﬁ&?ﬁﬁ@?ﬁﬁi( T [ R
tapers and microchannel plates (collectively referred Eml) HRRAE-—S2HHE HA
to as “Fiber Optic Products”), which is regarded as a B (PEELE) *%(FEE%E
single reportable segment in a manner consistent with 59&”%” )ER B 2 | E R IAEE IR
the way in which information is reported internally to DEMKRBEFHZAA B -EE
the directors, being the chief operating decision maker & "*Eé“F&’\*EE%ZquEEﬁEW
("CODM"), for purposes of resource allocation and BRERAREENLERZEEE
performance assessment. The measures segment results, &ET’@EEH&Z %&?%éﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ
segment assets and segment liabilities are consistent with XA BRERBEEIN HAZ
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other B EE DT o
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement
of financial position which are reported internally to the
CODM. Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented
other than entity-wide disclosures.
Entity-wide disclosures BEREE
(a) Information about products (a) EBEBZEH
The following table sets forth the total sales to TREIIFARINBE P HE
external customers by products and the percentage B (REGR) RMEBEKEZ
of total revenue by products during the year: b (FREMET) -
2023 2022
—E-= —F--
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T % AREFIT %
Fiber optic inverters it Rl ES 17,464 65 9,322 60
Fiber optic straight plates Yt & E 1R 363 1 479 3
Fiber optic face plates K EE R 939 4 567 4
Fiber optic tapers Dik: 1,521 6 2,212 14
Microchannel plates WiBER 6,430 24 2,842 18
Others Eih - - 113 1
26,717 100 15,535 100

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.

Annual Report 2023



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE_—ZFE_-=#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (continued)
(b) Geographical information

The Group principally operates in the PRC and the
Group’s non-current assets are all located in Shanxi,
the PRC.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue

9. WERKEEIEEN (£)

EENE (&)
(b) HEHEH

ZF%@IEEAEF‘.Lﬁ@% i
REB 7 IERBE E DI
B9 L 7g -

AEERBINBFF 2 Wk 123t

from external customers by geographical location: HAUBESTHAT :

2023 2022

—E-= —ZFT——
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ABR®F T
The PRC Fh 11,949 7,845
Russia i 78 2 11,884 5,220
Europe &M 1,781 2,422
Hong Kong &5 1,103 48
26,717 15,535

(c) Revenue from major customers

Revenue from major customers, each of whom set

() XEFEEFEFzZWHE
KERXTEEP ZWaSEH N

out below: N

2023 2022

—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT
Customer A ZFEH 11,738 3,645
Customer B 2B 7 7.526 4,404
Customer C BEFPA 3,350 2,336
Customer D B2ET N/A* 2,016
Customer E BEPHK N/A* 1,576
* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over * HERZE T R B AERNF

10% of the total revenue of the Group in the year.

MRS Z 10% A E o

A RARL BB O BRAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %

—E=F+_A=+—HIFE

=

9. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (continued)

Entity-wide disclosures (continued)

(d) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts

with customers

9. WEREKEIBER (&)

EERE (&)

(d) REFEFEXNZWREDHF

Manufacturing and sales of
Fiber Optic Products

Al o B K SH

2023 2022
—EC-=F T

RMB’000 RMB’000
Segment i AR® T ARETF T

Geographical markets &R T 5
The PRC 2] 11,949 7,845
Russia % 7 Hr 11,884 5,220
Europe BN 1,781 2,422
Hong Kong BB 1,103 48
26,717 15,535

Major products FEEm
Fiber optic inverters el fBlg 28 17,464 9,322
Fiber optic straight plates F AR 363 479
Fiber optic face plates ¢ 45 T AR 939 567
Fiber optic tapers ik 1,521 2,212
Microchannel plates B ER 6,430 2,842
Others Hi - 113
26,717 15,535

Timing of revenue recognition Tl T2 WA 2 e T

At point in time AR 26,717 15,535

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

The Group manufactures and sells of fiber optic prodcuts
to the customers. Sales are recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being when the products
are delivered to a customer, there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of
the products and the customers has obtained legal titles
to the products.

Sales to customers are normally made with credit terms of 90
days. For new customers, deposits or cash on delivery may
be required. Deposits received are recognised as a contract
liability.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered
to the customers as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of
time is required before the payment is due.

9.

WEREETEEN (B)

AEBRENAEFHECHE®-
HENEBEE M H R (AER
RNEP)®R XN FEARETER
FHERNEIMNEFCEBERW
BIEFERNRBITONER

HEBFETEPIOKRNEAHR -
HRHFEP A ZRWERIREHED
R BB REERREHNEE-

ERHEARERRZXN TEPRER
e B W R (B 7 S AR A - RS 3K
2 HA 2 B {2 78 B By PR A4

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET  10. Hfilt A\ - B RE1E  FH
2023 2022
—Eg=-= —ZF-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARKFIT
Waiver of interests payable P bR FE R B
(note 29 (ii(c))) (F3E29(i(0)) ) - 22,647
Fair value gains on other borrowings HEmEEz AFEKE
(note 29 (ii(c))) (B 3E29(i(0)) ) - 10,184
Deferred government grants released to = Bz 2 ELE BT & Bh
profit or loss (note 30) (BFs¥30) 3,567 2,250
Bank interest income RITALE WA 1 1
Gross rental income from transmitting By ae W AR
station 23 23
Gain on disposal of property, plant and & ¥ - BE M&EH 2 W
equipment 4,624 272
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain &N (8B WE (10) 34
Others Hh 196 70
8,401 35,481

WA RBMAEEMROBRD A
SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %

ZEC=F+ZA=1T—HIFE

11. FINANCE COSTS 1. B%EH
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF AR TFIT
Interest on a bank borrowing RITIEE R B 574 768
Interest on other borrowings HEmEER A 6,864 6,153
Interest on amounts due to shareholders &~ J& 3 2018 ~ FI| &, 1,494 1,314
Interest on discounted bills receivable BEREWEE 2T B - 58
8,932 8,293
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. REMBAX
2023 2022
—E-= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARMTFIT
Current tax: BOEAR IR
— Hong Kong Profits Tax —BAEFEH - -
Provision for the year FANEE
— PRC Enterprise Income tax —FREREMEH - -
Provision for the year FARE
Income tax expense FrigHi < - -

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax and the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax has been made in the consolidated
financial statements as the Group had no assessable
profits arising in or derived from Hong Kong and PRC for

both of the years presented.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2023
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mEMBERRWE

ECE_-HFAf-_A=+—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12. FRBHHX (&)
According to the applicable Enterprise Income Tax Law RATERB KRB RMAERR
of the PRC, the Company, which operates in the Taiyuan LEWFMARTREMEE  RIEH
Economic and Technology Development Zone (KR4 BIEACEMSERE AIRZZ—N
FERT B E [R) of the PRC, and which is registered as a F+—AZ+NHEB3FANZHE15%
New and High Technical Enterprise (f2#T#ifilid%), is ZEEABREEME -ZHFEER
entitled to a concessionary Enterprise Income Tax rate ZE—FF+ZAEHEE EAURRK
of 15% over 3 years, beginning on 29 November 2018. RABER=FRNBTEBI15% 21
The certificate was renewed on 7 December 2021, so the EMENMEENX EE_T_MF
Company is entitled to another concessionary Enterprise +ZARNB-BHEZZT-_=F+=A
Income Tax rate of 15% over 3 years, until 6 December —t+—BHIFE - ARFNZEBFIS%
2024. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the (ZZEZZF:115% ) 2 EFEBIHE
Company was still entitled to a concessionary Enterprise B R
Income Tax rate of 15% (2022: 15%).
The income tax expense can be reconciled to the loss SR A RgEEBR REAMER
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss W R AT ATETIE LRI T ¢
and other comprehensive income as follows:
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F AREFT
(Restated)
(grE751)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (B1B) & F (10,375) 7,207
Tax calculated at weighted average tax rate IR FIHRAE 2 H AR (1,556) 1,081
Tax effect of non-taxable income for tax purposes 78 52 it Ut A 2 Bt 165 57 28 (994) (1,083)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax AT S 2 B i 2
purposes 45 14
Tax effect of temporary differences not recognised KR 7 HEEZE 7 HIBFE 720 (2,039)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBEEE BB E 1,785 2,027

FISHR X

Income tax expense

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses and other deductible temporary
differences totalled approximately RMB31,969,000 (2022:
RMB33,187,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such tax losses and other deductible temporary
differences due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. The unused tax losses of approximately
RMB45,559,000 at 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMB46,777,000) is due to expire within one to five years.

R-E-—=F+-_A=+—H K&
& 7] A3 VR4 88 R s A 2 (B Rt AR Bh AR
REEBREMAINREGREZEE
=49 AR #31,969,0007T (
& AR¥33,187,0007T) - R EE
B8R AR RHE R RR - A B S
TE B 18 I B b ] 0 B = R R AR
BLEHBEEE- R_E-=F+=-A
=t+t—H APABRBEEBEBHOARE
45,559,000 (ZZE - —F: AR
46,777,0007T) A —ZERFANEH °

=

WE R AL B RO ERA T
—Eo=FEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %

13.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co.

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s (loss)/profit for the year is stated after
charging/(crediting) the following:

— = —

=

SEFZASH—BIER

13. FR(ER) EF
AEEZER (BR)EFENR,
(FHA)UTEE R 25

Auditors’ remuneration:
— Audit services
— Non-audit services

Cost of inventories sold
Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Research and development costs
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment
loss of investments in associates
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment

loss of:

— trade receivables, net
— other receivables

Staff costs including directors’
remuneration:

Wages and salaries

Pension scheme contributions

Annual Report 2023

Ltd.

2023 2022
—E-=HE —_FT—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETF T
(Restated)
(&Z&ES)
% ERD B £
— ZER T 550 550
— IERZ RS - -
550 550
HEGFTERKA 14,333 9,578
ME BEMREITE
4,790 4,316
FREEEINE 293 293
Eﬂ Ak N 2,683 1,886
AN N EIIRE 2 OREEE
BE),/REEE (281) 88
WTEEz CREEsERRD)
VOREY SR
—EIWE ZERK - FEE (2,240) 1,615
— E b B W FKIE (35) 137
(2,275) 1,752
ETKRA(BRESZHE) :
TENH® 11,537 10,687
RIRET IR 4,510 5,072
16,047 15,759
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mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. EERABREFATIZEHE

INDVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a),
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

RELETRA TR QB K H
383(1)(a) ~ (b) ~ () K ()5 e A &) (4 F'
EZNmER) ROIE2HHEZFA
EENTETRABZBEMT:

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Fees we
Other emoluments: Hibii< -
Salaries, allowances and benefits Ha 2R EYET
in kind
Pension scheme contribution RIREFEIE R

312 339

312 339

WA RBMAEEMROBRD A
SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

14. EERTBBRSHFALTZM
& (&)
(a) BEERFETBRASZMS

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_ER_=-F4+-A=t-HLEE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Emoluments

Salaries,
allowances
and Pension
benefits in scheme
Fees kind contribution Total
e 2K ERErE
ue BENER hE ok
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETR
Executive directors: HITES:
Song Zhenglai REK 48 - - 48
Wang Lingling IrK 36 - - 36
Jiao Baoguo ERE 36 - - 36
120 - - 120
Independent non-executive B FRTES:
directors:
Xu Yongfeng TR 36 - - 36
Wang Weizhong TER 36 - - 36
Rong fei Epild 36 - - 36
108 - - 108
Non-executive directors: FHITES:
Yuan Guoliang rER 36 - - 36
Wu Bo RE 48 - - 48
84 - - 84
312 - - 312

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ and Chief Executive'’s Emoluments

(continued)

2-FEC

mEMBERRWE

=Ft+-A=1T—HIFE

14. EERTEBBRSHFALTZM
& (&)

(a) EBERFEFTHAEZHE

(%)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BE-T_—F4+-A=t+—HIFE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contribution Total
e 2Rk RIRETE
we  EUWER X k)
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
fist  AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETRT
Executive directors: HWOEE:
Song Zhenglai REE 48 - - 48
Wang Lingling IRK 36 - - 36
Zhao Zhi HE (i) 27 - - 27
Jiao Baoguo ERE 36 - - 36
147 - - 147
Independent non-executive B FEHTES:
directors:
Xu Yongfeng ATk 36 - - 36
Wang Weizhong TR 36 - - 36
Rong fei R 36 - - 36
108 - - 108
Non-executive directors:  FFHITES:
Yuan Guoliang RER 36 - - 36
Wu Bo RK 48 - - 48
84 - - 84
339 - - 339

WE R AL B RO ERA T
—Eo=FEH
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

14. EEREEREHFA LT ZH

INDVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued) ® (&)
(b) Supervisors’ Remuneration (b) EEEHTA
2023 2022
—E-= —_EF-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARMFIT
Fees kR - -
Other emoluments: Hii4 -
Salaries, allowances and benefits Fae 2 NEWER
in kind
Pension scheme contribution BRIRET SR - -
5 5
For the year ended 31 December 2023
BZE-Z-=f4+-A=1+-HILEE
Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension
benefits scheme
Fees in kind contribution Total
e 28
R HAt B
ue BENER HELER ok
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETFT ARETR
Han Xiaoou BER - - - -
Dong Yonghong EA:A - - - _
Song Zhenbao RIRE - 5 - 5
- 5 - 5

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2023




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. EERTEBESHFALT M
INDVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued) & (&)
(b) Supervisors’ Remuneration (continued) (b) EEEHM (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2022
BE_T-_ "+ A=+—-HIFE

Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension
benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contribution Total
e 2H
REAM RIK
we  BYWEMN  FEHRX B

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ANEBFT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Han Xiaoou A=A - - - _

Dong Yonghong ER% - - - -

Song Zhenbao RIKE - 5 - 5

_ 5 - 5

Notes: Bt et

(@) Mr. Zhao Zhi, an executive director passed away on (a) WMITEEHELER T
2 October 2022. F+ A - HEtt-

(b)  There was no arrangement under which a director, (b) FAVELMEE TEBITH
the chief executive or a supervisor waived or agreed AEEEEHWNESRZ N
to waive any remuneration during the year. BEEMEGH T8

() During the year, no emoluments were paid by (0 FR - AEBEWEMEE F
the Group to a director, the chief executive or a BITEA B ok BE =2 3 (AT A
supervisor as an inducement to join, or upon joining & EBFBEMASMBERE
the Group, or as compensation for loss of office. BAF 2 RS BB (E o

umsanxnaEornsa 117
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. EERTEBESHFALT M

INDVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(c) Five Highest Paid Individual Emoulments

None of the director included in the five highest
paid individuals of the Group (2022: None). The
emoluments of the remaining five (2022: five)
highest paid employees are as follows:

& (&)
(0 BEBEBEFALZHS

KEBRAZEEFATHETEIE
BEE(ZZE=—F:8)-%TH
F(ZEZZF - RA)BaH

EEZMEWT :
2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits Fa R REWER

in kind
Pension scheme contribution RIREFEIR R

Emoluments of these employees were within the
following bands:

622 610
149 105
771 715

ZEREEZMEsEENT

Number of employees

BEE A"
2023 2022
—E-=F —_E-=
Emolument band: 4 &5 &
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =% 1,000,000/ 7T 5 5

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the above
highest paid individuals as (i) an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or (ii) as compensation
for loss of office as a director or management of
any members of the Group (2022: Nil).

1 1 8 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2023
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16.

17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

DIVIDEND 15. R E
The directors do not recommend the payment of any EETERRNEE S _=F K=
dividend for each of the years ended 31 December 2023 E-—F+-A=+—BHItFESF
and 2022. Z AR E -
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 16. AT HEEABEER (B
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE B)BF
COMPANY
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREX (FE) &F
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based BRER(ER) BFIREE
on the loss attributable to owners of the Company for E-TE =+ -_A=+—HItF
the year ended 31 December 2023 of approximately EARGHEBEARBGEBROARE
RMB10,392,000 (2022: profit of approximately 10,392,0007C (= = = F & M 49
RMB7,219,000 as restated) and 308,860,000 (2022: AR ¥7,219,0007T (K &) ) R F
308,860,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year. N B % 17308,860,000/% (=& = —
% :308,860,000% ) L@ T &
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share BREE (FE) &2A
No diluted (loss)/earnings per share is presented as there WE2Y|gREE (BB &%
were no diluted potential ordinary shares in issue during RBE_T-_="FR-ZFT-_F+=
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. A=T—BILHE1EEZETELH
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ -BERRZRE
Leasehold Plantand Furniture and Motor
Buildings improvements  machinery fixtures vehicles Total
BF HENEEE BERHE HAREE AE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT  ARETR
(Restated) (Restated)
(8%3]) (8%3])
COST: BA:
At 1 January 2022 R-E--F-F-H 149,528 34 47,290 1,934 408 199,194
Additions AE - - 41 - - 41
Disposals HE - - (387) - - (387)
At 31 December 2022 and RZEZZE+ZA=1-H
1 January 2023 “Z-ZE-f-H 149,528 34 46,944 1,934 408 198,848
Additions AE 12,773 - 475 32 - 13,280
Disposals e - - (4,281) - - (4,281)
At 31 December 2023 R-E-Z£+-A=1-H 162,301 34 43,138 1,966 408 207,847

WE R AL B RO ERA T
—Eo=FEH
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17. PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. ¥ -BERZRE (E)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 & —FF+—HAH=+—HIFZE

(continued)
Leasehold Plantand Furniture and Motor
Buildings improvements  machinery fixtures vehicles Total
BF HENEEE BERHE HLREE AE it
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Restated) (Restated)
(7)) (%5
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ ZHTERBE:
AND IMPAIRMENT:
At 1 January 2022 R-E-—F-F-H 32,508 34 44,948 1873 408 79,771
Charged for the year Emik 3,646 - 650 20 - 4316
Fliminated on disposals iH R - - (248) - - (248)
At 31 December 2022 and RZEZZE+ZA=+-H
1 January 2023 e = 36,154 34 45,350 1,893 408 83,839
Charged for the year Erik 4,058 - 715 17 - 4,790
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - - (4,118) - - (4,118)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=E+ZA=1-H 40,212 34 41,947 1,910 408 84,511
CARRYING AMOUNT: REE:
At 31 December 2023 R-EZ=E+ZB=1-H 122,089 - 1191 56 - 123,336
At 31 December 2022 RZE-_F+-A=1-H 113,374 - 1,594 4 - 115,009

The buildings are situated on land in the PRC under
remaining lease term of 31.5 years (2022: 32.5 years).

As at 31 December 2023, certain buildings with the
carrying amount of approximately RMB41,501,000 (2022:
RMB42,909,000) were pledged to a bank to secure bank
borrowing granted to the Group (note 29(i)).

In addition, management of the Company also,
conducted impairment assessments on the Group's plant
and machinery with reference to their estimated selling
prices as valued by the external valuer and is of the view
that no impairment is required to be made on the plant
and machinery as their estimated selling prices at 31
December 2023 and 31 December 2022 are not less than
the carrying amounts of such assets as at those respective
dates.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2023
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RN-E-—=F+-—A=+—H EH@
BE#H ARMA41,501,000 (ZFE ==
F: ANR#42,909,0007T) 2 & T1&
FEERTF—MEBRITUEARTFAE
ERITHEE 2| (FFE29G)) °

N KRR REBEINE X E I H
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mEMBERRWE

=Ft+-A=1T—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ_-ZF—

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. FRAREEE
Disclosures of lease-related items: HEMHBAER 2KRE:
2023 2022
—EC-=HF —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETFIT
At 31 March: R=ZB=+—H:
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
- Land use right — T (F A 9,072 9,365
The maturity analysis, based on AEEHEEEZIEOHNT
undiscounted cash flows, of the Group’s (BEXRIIRIE A=)
lease liabilities is as follows: Ik
— Less than 1 year —PR1F - -
— Qver 1 year —1F N E - -
Year ended 31 March: BE=ZA=1+—HLEE:
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FHAEEE 2 FTE L H
— Land use right — TP A 293 293

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group’s land use
right represents the leasehold land with the remaining
lease period of 31.5 years (2022: 32.5 years) and located
at No. 7, Dianzi Street, Demonstration Zone, Shanxi, the
PRC. Such land use right was pledged to a bank to secure
bank borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).

RZEBE—_=FR_F__F+=A1
Zt+—H AEENLIHERES
URPRRLARERE FH7ENE
Eti B THEHARINSF(ZFT
T TF325%F) o H AR E
By —HRT EAREEER 2R

THEE 2B (KE29) -

The carrying amount of the land use right is amortised on
the straight-line basis over the remaining lease period.

TH(E AR 2 BREEIR EARE B R
THERANEH-

WA RBMAEEMROBRD A

—R-=FFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

19. SUBSIDIARIES

19. B 2D 7

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

TEWEAAFENT

Percentage of equity

interests
attributable to the
Place of Company
incorporation or Registered/ AR ELR
Company name registration/ paid up capital BRIl Principal activities
MR ERRE/ 2023 2022

NAER B BRER —B-=E “T--F IEEE

Direct

E&

Shanxi Changcheng Huiging Environmental ~ PRC RMB1,000,000/ 55% 55%  Wholesale of household
Technology Company Limited* RMB200,000 water purifiers
(Changcheng Huiging) AR H1,000,0007,/ FRFKENE

W RHERRERRER A AR 200,000
(RAER])

Shanxi Shansite Optoelectronics Technology ~ PRC # RMBS5,000,000/ 100% 100%  Sales of optoelectronic
Co., Limited* (Shansite) RMB NIL* and fiber optics

WARBEXEREERAR ([FHR%]) AR 5,000,007,/ products

ARBZT" BEXERAMER

* The English names of the PRC companies referred to
above in this Note represent management'’s best efforts in
translating the Chinese names of those companies as no
English names have been registered or available.

None of these registered capital has been paid by the

Group as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

None of the non-controlling interests is considered
individually significant.

The directors are of the opinion that a complete list of
the subsidiaries of the Company will be of excessive
length and therefore the above list contains only the
particulars of subsidiaries which principally affect the
results or assets of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of both years or at any time during both of the
years.

The Group had no subsidiary which has material non-
controlling interests for the years ended 31 December
2023 and 2022, accordingly financial information
regarding the non-controlling interests is not presented in
the consolidated financial statements.

19. B AT (&)
15 4 IR R HE 25 B A E R E A

EZERR/ARAINBRARIZEERE
BRUE Bt Ei R BEHFFER2
FEASERELEECMBARZ

B -

7 P B 4R 2 R 2 i B 5 2 2 (A7 B
B HEMBARBTEMNESE
#0

HE-_Z-_ZFRr-_F-_—_F+=A8
=+ HUEFE AEETEAEX
JEIERERS 2 KB AR A RE IR
A% 4 25 M) B 75 B B R R AR A B IS 7R
KEF -

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 20. AEfERRIZRE
2023 2022
—E-= —_F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARMTFIT
Unlisted investments: ELETIRE:
Share of net assets B EEFE 2,564 2,564
Due from associates JE W B i N B 5B 1,180 1,461
3,744 4,025
Impairment losses VERIEN SR (3.744) (4,025)

WA RBMAEEMROBRD A
SRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

20. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20.

The following table shows information of associates that
are material to the Group. These associates are accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method. The summarised financial information
presented is based on the HKFRS financial statements of
the associates.

REBELRAZRE (F)
TRIIREAEEBEA 2B E QA
2 BB SRS D AE AR EORR
A BIEMRNFIIR - BT 251 2 81 75
ERBEDERZSHERAZEE
B BREEARE P BRE -

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation interests attributable to
or registration/ Registered/ the Company
Company name operations paid up capital ALAREEREBIL  Principal activities
AMALE ERRE/ 2023 2022
nAER B/ EENY MREX “BIZF “T--F IERE
Direct
ER
Shanxi Huayuan Transport Optical Technology ~ PRC & RMB11,000,000/ 36% 36%  Development of fibre optic
and Engineering Company Limited* RMB11,000,000 intelligent transport
(Huayuan Transport) AR#11,000,0007,/ system business in the
WEEERBAERMIRARAT AR 811,000,000 PRC
SE3:-v3:1)) RPEEREGEEES
Taiyuan Changcheng Luojiguang Optical PRC 1 RMB2,000,000/ 35% 35%  Manufacturing,
Technology Company Limited* RMB1,720,000 processing, research
(Changcheng Luojiguang) AR 2,000,000,/ and development and
ARRBEEKEMBEERAT ARE1,720,0007T sales of electronic
([RmEER]) components and
optical subcomponents
EFTHRKETEMD
EE NI HERH
&
Taiyuan Weiguang Feifan Education PRC # RMB100,000/ 49% 49%  Education information
Management Consultant Company RMB NIL" consultation,
Limited* (Weiguang Feifan) AE 100,000t/ organizing cultural
REEXFNHEERENERAT AR¥ET and artistic exchange
([#3ER]) activities, housing lease

1 2 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2023

BAMAH AR
REMRRED BE
HE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE_—ZFE_-=#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

20. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

* The English names of the PRC companies referred to
above in this Note represent management’s best efforts in
translating the Chinese names of those companies as no
English names have been registered or available.

None of these registered capital has been paid by
investors as at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest
free and not repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group recognised
impairment losses of approximately RMB3,744,000
(2022: RMB4,025,000) in respect of the interests in the
associates mainly due to uncertainties surrounding the
industry in which the associate operates.

The associates are accounted for using the equity method
in these consolidated financial statements and the
associates are not considered to be individually material
to the Group.

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s
share of the amounts of all individually immaterial
associates that are accounted for using the equity
method.

20. EA%‘M"TZHE (%)

AW EX PR B AR 2 R
WHEEEERABNHZE AR
Z¢‘K%$§12§ﬂu§ ESp Yk i
HAI T2 E L EHE

" RZBEZ=FR=_F-_—_F+=A
=+—HB REFUEBEHNZER
& A

JE U Bt & AR RIE T E IR 2B K
ﬂ/ﬁ\ﬁ/\\ EEWE-\E&"

RZEZ=F+-_A=+—H ' &&
EphEE N A 2 EaERBEEIRL
ARB3,744,000 (ZE=Z=F : A
R#4,025,0000) » EEH PR ZH L
RAIFIREZITEESNTHBPAZ
Fr gk o

BE QR EAEREAR L ERA NS
BRAARR BB Z QR AR A E
Pl AREEMEBEKN-

TRIRAEBOEFAERTE XL
FTEAMBENFINERE MRS
MR SAAIR

mﬁﬁiﬁwtasmwﬁmm 1 2 5

—E-=f



126

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

20. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

21.

20. R NR2RE (&)

2023 2022
—EC-=H —E2-=

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARBF T

At 31 December R+=BR=+-—H
Carrying amounts of interests EmREE

Year ended 31 December

Loss from continuing operations BELEER
Other comprehensive loss Hih2EEE
Total comprehensive loss FHEEERE

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of results of the associate, Huayuan Transport, because
the share of losses of the associate exceeded the Group’s
interest in the associate. As at 31 December 2023, the
cumulatively unrecognised share of losses of the associate
is approximately RMB1,918,000 (2022: RMB1,918,000).

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of results of the associate, Changcheng Luojiguang,
because the share of losses of the associate exceeded
the Group’s interest in the associate. As at 31 December
2023, the cumulatively unrecognised share of losses
of the associate is approximately RMB6,000 (2022:
RMB6,000).

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of results of the associate, Weiguang Feifan, because the
share of losses of the associate exceeded the Group's
interest in the associate. As at 31 December 2023, the
cumulatively unrecognised share of losses of the associate
is approximately RMB6,000 (2022: RMB5,000).

BE+-HA=+—-BLEE

AR DM ZHENREEBRANER
REE N B ERRBZ e AL A
SEERIEERSMZBE RT3
B-R—_TE-_=F+=—RA=+—H"
ZET AR DB AR AEIBLOA
R#1,918,000L (ZE=Z=F: AR
#1,918,0007T) ©

RO MEBE RN NEBRBEAER
RZBE N ER  AEBE &L

RESHBERNRRMBE L 2%
BH-RNZEZ=F+=-A=+—8"
R ABERO DB E RFEEY
ARG 000 (ZEBE-—F: ARK
6,0007T) °

A FE(R B & A R4 IE LM BB B
BAREB R ZE A NG R R
EEERIEEREREZBENRMNE
BN EZ=F+-_A=+—8"
B RERNEEBEAREEOA
ARG 000 (ZE-—5F: AR
5,0007C) ©

INVENTORIES 1. B&

2023 2022

—E-= —_F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETF T
Raw materials R # R 413 695
Work in progress R 3,884 5,307
Finished goods KUK oh 9,191 4,146
13,488 10,148

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. EIRE B R

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETF T
Trade receivables FEUNE 5 B8R 3K 28,215 21,208
Provision for loss allowance SHRE RS (11,189) (13,429)
Trade receivables, net JEWE ZERFK - TR 17,026 7,779

Trade receivables are past due when a counterparty
has failed to make a payment when contractually due.
Credit terms granted to customers vary from contract to
contract. The credit period granted to customers is O to
90 days (2022: 0 to 90 days) from payment application
date, except for the retention receivables.

EHFITEREGOIBRIAR
HBEWEZEREFAHERABH T4
AR TEFPNEEBRETHER &
FEEFHNEEHANREEBHEO
ZF90R (ZE-—%:0%290R) ' |
FEYURE BRI o

The aging analysis of the trade receivables based on the

EWE ZEFNREBERBRENE

invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

SHHHRESTAOT

2023 2022

—EZZ=HF —E-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARKFT
0 - 90 days 0290H 5,025 6,570
91 — 180 days 912180H 4,428 600
181 — 365 days 1812365H 7,543 609
Over 1 year 1 E 30 -
17,026 7,779

WA RBMAEEMROBRD A
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

22. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Reconciliation of the loss allowance for trade receivables:

22. EWE SRR (£&)
FEUK B SRR S R i W R -

2023 2022

—E-= —=E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBF T
At 1 January n—A—H 13,429 11,814

(Reversal of impairment loss)/ (BEIRERTE), REEIE -

impairment loss, net R (2,240) 1,615
Exchange realignment PE 3R - -
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 11,189 13,429

The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS
9 to provide for expected credit losses using the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To
measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. The expected credit losses also
incorporate forward looking information.

7N 55 [ 18 P & 7B B A5 e 7 ZE RIS 9%
TER S TDEB AT A R E 5 MR E
AEREYERREHERMEES
B-RIERMEEER BRES
ERERBAZEERBREE N EY
BEETHE -BHREEBETES
AIAEMEE#L -

Over Over Over Over
3 months 6 months 9 months one year
Not past due past due past due past due past due Total
ABH BHSIER BHSN6ER BHLRIER AMENUL it
At 31 December 2023 RZBZZE+ZA=1-A
Weighted average expected loss rate 1T EEEER 0% 0% 0% 5% 100%
Receivable amount RMB'000)  FESE (A\RETT) 5,025 4,484 6,500 1,012 11,134 28215
Loss allowance (RMB'000) FREE(\RETT) - - () (50) (11,134) (11,189)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—F+-f=1-H
Weighted average expected loss rate JIfETHEHFER 0% 0% 2% 81% 100%
Receivable amount RMB'000)  AIKESE(ARETT) 6,571 - 613 30 10,802 21,208
Loss allowance (RMB'000) BEEE(ARETT) (1) - (13) (2,613) (10,802) (13.429)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort. The
grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is updated.
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mEMBERRWE

ECE_-HFAf-_A=+—HILFE

RECEIVABLES

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

23. AR RERHEMWEWVRKE

2023 2022

—=E_-= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARMTFIT
Prepayments 673 2,775
Other receivables H i EU FR I8 12,900 10,304
13,573 13,079
Provision for loss allowance &5 18 7 1% (i) (5,102) (5,137)
Other receivables, net H fth fE WG Fh I H %8 8,471 7,942

(i)  Reconciliation of the loss allowance for other

(i) EHEUFIEEBBREEBHEK:

receivables:

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARMTFIT
At 1 January ®n—HA—A 5,137 5,000

(Reversal of impairment loss)/ (BERERER) REEE
impairment loss (35) 137
At 31 December Rt+=—_BA=+—H 5,102 5,137
LBEREMEEMROERATE

—R-=FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

24. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 24. BT RBESER

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBF T
Cash at bank R1TIR & 275 405
Cash on hand FEWRS 2 -
Bank and cash balances SR1T M IR & 4 277 405

At the end of the reporting period, the bank balances
and cash of the Group are mainly denominated in RMB.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.
Under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through banks that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

25. TRADE PAYABLES

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the date
of receipt of goods, is as follows:

25.

RBEMR AEEZRITEHRER
SEBUARBREM-

ARBAFFAIEHRLBAINENE
B REPBMINEE GRS K&K
B R B D ERBETINER K 2
RITUARE L H]INE

RIRTTZ RS RIBIRITEHRITER
MR ZE R BREA B - RITAE AR
TR EE RIT M &I E {0 8%
ZERTT e

B R 5 B
BNESEFREEMERBMZE
[CaRin Ul

2023 2022

—E-= —_E-=
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ Tt AR FT
0 to 90 days 0Z290H 616 744
91 to 180 days 91H £180H 106 643
181 to 365 days 181H £365H 1,840 20
Over 1 year HBiE1F 6,145 7,638
8,707 9,045
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mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

26. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

26. BET AR HtENKE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFT
Accrued construction cost and salaries, &t T 12k 2N X % B )2
and other payables E b fE {5 008 126,312 103,829
Other accrued expenses Hip gt 9,607 9,498
Legal claims payable (note) e ERRE (M) 15,310 8,087
Others Hip 3,499 2,939
154,728 124,353
Note: it et -
Movements of the legal claims payable are as follows: R ERRE2EHNT
2023 2022
—ZE_-= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F T ARBEFIT
At 1 January n—A—H 8,087 5,124
Addition in the year F RN 7,223 2,963
At 31 December wRt+t—-_A=+—H 15,310 8,087

During the year, the Group received certain judgements issued
by PRC courts over legal claims lodged by purchase suppliers,
construction contractors and former employees of the Group
in respect of debts that the Group owed these parties. Having
reviewed the PRC courts’ judgements, management of the
Company considered it appropriate to recognize loss on legal
claims amounted to approximately RMB7,223,000 (2022:
RMB2,963,000), which represents additional payables to the
claimants as calculated to be the excess of the amounts of
payables judged over the payables and accrued expenses which
were accounted for in the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the previous years.

FN A @R P B A BT BLER B L e
BREAEBRASEIEERASE
BHERAZEATHEBRENEEZRE
TEL R E T HIR - L E B R BUART /Y HR
% ARRIEEEBRAMREIERERSE
PARMET 223,000 (ZEZ=—F: AR
#£2,963,0007T ) B E - BN E RE AR
B R AR RIEBE R AR EE BT
FEZHREMEREANRZ R FIERE
ATFASEE-

WE R AL B RO ERA T
—Eo=FEH
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27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

27. EEE

2023 2022
—E-=F T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARKFT
Advance payments received from MIHE S mB F P WA
customers for sales of goods Z Taft 518 5,365 5,928
Year ended 31 December BE+-A=+t—HLEFE
Revenue recognised in the year that FHFFAGHEBELR
was included in contract liabilities at FNERR W
beginning of year 687 35
Significant changes in contract REAFESGHEBNERED
liabilities during the year
Increase due to operations in the year FRE S EE N 124 441
Transfer of contract liabilities to revenue A 4B EZ W (687) (35)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer products or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration from the customer.

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregated amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations under the Group’s existing contract is
approximately RMB5,290,000 (2022: RMB5,487,000).
This amount represents revenue expected to be
recognised in the future from sales of goods by the
Group to the customers. The Group will recognise the
expected revenue in future when the goods are assigned
to the customers, which is expected to occur over the
next 12 months (2022: next 12 months).
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mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

28. AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS 28. B EMKIE
Analyses of the amounts due to shareholders are as FET IR RIBATAT
follows:
2023 2022
—E-= —_F-—
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Amounts due to shareholders JE B R 3R IR
— unsecured — AR R
Amounts due to shareholders JiE A< f% BR 3k 1B
— interest recognised based on effective —RERFNE12.33%5t
interest rate of 12.33% per annum B2 B HERA A
(note (i) (BaEG))

— interest recognised at chargeable rates of —3IZ&%F3.65% — 5.12%

3.65% — 5.12% per annum (note (i), (i) ZIES SRR 2 F B

and (iii)) (BFaE ) ~ (i) K (iii) )
— interest free (note (iv)) — %8B (MaE(v))

Amounts due to shareholders repayable &3 f& 1~ I8 58 3% 18

— on demand or within one year —RERIN—FNR

—in the second year —FEF

— in the third to fifth year, inclusive —F=FEFERF

(HEREMEBREEN)

Analysed for reporting purposes: MEREMDTWT

Classified in DEZE

— current liabilities - mEBBaE

— non-current liabilities —ERBEE
Notes: Fit i -
() In December 2022, the Company entered into an (i)

agreement with the shareholder for the revision of the
terms of a part of the loan due to the shareholder with
effect from 1 January 2022, pursuant to which (i) the
repayment of the loan due by the Group to the shareholder
with the principal amount of RMB14,600,000 has been
extended to the revised maturity date of 26 December
2026; and (ii) interest is chargeable on the outstanding
amount at 5.12% per annum.

23,413 20,884
23,413 20,884
13,279 11,822
1,621 549
8,513 8,513
23,413 20,884
9,826 9,062
308 -
13,279 11,822
23,413 20,884
9,826 9,062
13,587 11,822
23,413 20,884

R-ZE-—F+=-fF AAFHK
RAIS ek DMERTSb D B IR R
BERzEFR(BZE=_=F—A—
HEER B (VEEAEEE
RIEER 2 A€ 5 ARE14,600,000
TZERCERELETREHE =
T RNFHFZ A=+ E &M
KREBESBIRETF5.12% 2 FIRIUL
BFIE -

WA RBMAEEMROBRD A
SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

28. AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS

Notes: (continued)

()

(i)

(iii)

(continued)

The fair value of the unsecured loan due to the
shareholder with the principal amount of RMB14,600,000
at the effective date of the revision of terms of the loan
was estimated to be approximately RMB10,524,000,
using the effective interest rate of 12.33% per annum,
as valued by an external valuer. The gain arising from the
revision of the terms of the shareholder’s loan amounted
to approximately RMB4,076,000, which was calculated
as the difference between the principal amount of the
loan of RMB14,600,000 and the fair value of the loan of
approximately RMB10,524,000, was dealt with in equity
and was included in other reserve of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2022. As at December
2023, the outstanding interest with effective rate at
12.33% per annum was approximately RMB2,755,000
(2022: RMB1,298,000) As at 31 December 2023,
the face amount of this loan due to the shareholder,
comprising the principal amount and accrued interest
thereon, amounted to approximately RMB14,600,000
(2022: RMB14,600,000). The effective interest rate at 31
December 2023 adopted for this loan is 12.33% (2022:
12.33%) per annum.

On 9 May 2023, the Company entered into a new loan
agreement with the abovementioned shareholder of the
Company, with the principal amount of RMB300,000. The
loan is unsecured, carries interest at 4.02% per annum
and repayable by 8 May 2025. As at 31 December 2023,
the carrying amount of loan and accrued interest was
approximately RMB308,000.

A Shareholder of the Company provided a financial
support to the Company during the year prior years.
The financial support is unsecured, carries interest of
3.65% per annum and repayment on demand. As at 31
December 2022, the outstanding principal of the financial
support was approximately RMB549,000. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Company received a new
financial support of RMB1,875,000 and a total principal
of RMB1,140,000 has been repaid. As at 31 December
2023, the outstanding principal of financial support was
approximately RMB1,313,000.

The advance from a shareholder is unsecured, interest free
and repayment on demand.
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28. ERERIE

Hfat: (&)

(@)

(i)

(iii)

(%)

EONIEEREE RETEX
BERERBHAEBAARKE
14,600,000 T 2 JE {7 I% & & K
HERZAFEFRTOABAR
#10,524,0000 ERFF X &
12.33% (BRI EETUERE £
2 Wi A ANR4,076,0007T 0 Th
BER 2 A FEAR14,600,000
TEHERZAFEHARE
10,524,000t 2 MM Z & E - B
REBEZE-_ZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—8H
FEEERERNEEL T ARE
BrHEMREHE RZE_=F+=
A=+—H ZEBRFFE12.33%
FECAEENBEAHARE
2,755,000 (—ZE - —F: ARK
1,298,00070) M T - =ZF+ =
A=+—HB HWEEMBRREZR (2
BASBEREENFE)NEES
4 N R #14,600,000c (ZE ==
F£: AR¥14,600,0007T) ° LI E
EREMZR=_ZE=-_=F+=A
=+ HZERNEAETF1233%
(ZZ-=4F:1233%) °

RZZE-_=ZFRANLB AAAH
A& 4% AR¥300,000T 2 EX
Bt KRB B R ET S HTE AR
EORERABEER KFAME
4.02%x8 BZEER-ZE-RAFHA
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=t+—RB ZERKEFFEZE
HE &4 AR®308,0007T °

REFEEARAQF —BREERA
NEREMNBE - 2 BEDE
E|INH R FFE365%:F B BB
HEREE - R_TE-__F+=-A
—t+—H UBEBhZREELRS
ALY ANRES549,0007T - REE =
E-=F+-_A=+—HIEFE"
ARRWE —£FHBEDIAR
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=Ft+-A=1T—HIFE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #

29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

2-FEC

29. BT RHEMEE

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt #% AR¥ T ARBFT
Bank borrowing TE 0 6,020 10,581
Other borrowings ==} (ii) 64,768 58,016
70,788 68,597
2023 2022
—E_-= —_EFq_-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARMTFIT
The borrowings are repayable as follows: EEEEWMT :
On demand or within one year BERIN—FR 11,764 16,052
In the second year FEZFR - -
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FZEFRF
(EEMFEBREEA) 59,024 52,545
70,788 68,597
Less: Amount due for settlement within W RNEARNGEE 2
12 months (shown under current T ERIE (A
liabilities) BEETHR) (11,764) (16,052)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months #1218 B 18 & & > e 5018 59,024 52,545

Notes:

Bt at -

()

On 21 June 2023, the Company entered into an
agreement with the bank for the revision of the terms of a
part of the loan with effect from 30 June 2023, pursuant
to which (i) the repayment of the remaining loan principal
amount of RMB6,020,000 (2022: RMB10,581,000) has
been extended to the revised maturity date of 30 June
2024; and (ii) interest is chargeable on the outstanding
amount at 6.92% (2022: 7.23%) per annum.

The loan is secured by (i) the pledge of the Group’s right-
of-use asset located at No.7, Dianzi Street, Demonstration
Zone, Shanxi, the PRC (note 18) and (ii) certain buildings
(note 17).

(@)

RZFBEZ=FA=Z+—H &R
AIERITEI L ek BRI D E
RZEFR(BZEZ=F A=
HEAR) Hit - VEEASEA
K %6,020,000t (ZEZZ=4F: A
R#10,581,00070) ZH TERE L
RELEFEEE T - WFE<A
=tH:RMAEESHEEF
6.92% (ZEZZ=%F:7.23% ) 2 H
TUTELF B o

B BRAG IR AR = B A2 A A B L 7
ErHERETHECRZEREEE
(FF=E18) Re(iEm T F (M E17)
(iR

WE R AL B RO ERA T
—Eo=FEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

29. SRITRHMEE (&)

(continued)
Notes: (continued) ffat: (%)
(i) An analysis of the other borrowings is as follows: (i) HibEEZHWOT:
2023 2022
—E2-= —E_F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
it & AR¥TFT AREFIT
Loan from a director of the RAARG —BEBEZER
Company (a) 331 320
Loan from the holding company of & B &K Q 7] — & M8 2 12 8%
a shareholder of the Company RNElZ B (b) 7,858 6,995
Loan from third parties KEE=ZAZER (c) 56,579 50,701
64,768 58,016
(@) The loan from a director of the Company, Mr. Yuan (a) KEARIEFRHR LA

Guoliang is unsecured, carries interest at 4.35% per
annum and is repayable on demand.

(b) The loan from the holding company of a (b)
shareholder of the Company is unsecured, carries
interest at 12% per annum and is repayable by 31
December 2026.

() The Group entered into agreements in December (c)
2022 with a loan lender for the revision of the
terms of the loans with effect from 1 January 2022,
pursuant to which:

- repayments of the loans with the aggregate
principal amount of RMB50,000,000 have
been extended to the revised maturity date of
31 December 2026;

- interests are chargeable on these loans at
12% per annum; and

- accumulated interests charged on the loans
amounted to approximately RMB22,647,000
were waived by the loan lender during the
year ended 31 December 2022.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

(continued)

The interests payable amounted to approximately
RMB22,647,000 waived by the loan lender have been
credited to profit or loss of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 and were included in other income,
gains and losses, net (note 10).

The fair value of the other borrowings with the
principal amount of RMB56,959,000 was estimated
to be approximately RMB46,775,000 at the effective
date of the revision of the terms of the loan, using the
effective interest rate of 12.33% per annum, as valued
by an external valuer. The gain on revision of the other
borrowings, of approximately RMB10,184,000, which
was calculated as the difference between the fair value of
the other borrowings of approximately RMB46,775,000
and their principal amounts of RMB56,959,000 has been
credited to profit or loss of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 and was included in other income,
gains and losses, net (note 10).

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate carrying amount
of the other borrowings from third parties remained
outstanding is approximately RMB56,579,000 (2022:
RMB50,701,000), comprising the principal amounts
and interests thereon. And as at 31 December 2023,
the loan from third parties amounted to approximately
RMB5,413,000 was defaulted; and amounted to
approximately RMB51,166,000 are repayable in three
years. The effective interest rates at 31 December 2023
adopted for these other borrowings ranged from 2% to
30% per annum (2022: 2% to 30% per annum).

29.

RITREMEER (&)

ERABREZERFBEHARE
22,647,000 E T AR EEREZ =
T _F+_A=t+—BILFEE I
A B EFAE MY - s KR ES
g FF (BHFE10) ©

oo

KN EMEE RIBTER
BHRERBBASEANARK
56,959,000t v Efg B 2 A F &
st 45 AR #46,775,0007T © BEE
FHFEI1233% BEJEMEEFK
EfzRm B AREK10,184,000
T NEEMEEZATFEARE
#4946,775,000c EHE AR 2 AREK
56,959,000t Z M ZREFTE BB
FHAREENBRE_TE-__F+=A
= +—HIEFEZEZYABFAEM
WA~ Was K B9 - 388 (B9FE10) ©

R-ZE-—=F+=-A=+—80" 1%
BEZRBE=ZAZEMEE R
HE A% A R¥56,579,0000 (=&
— % : AR¥50,701,0007T) (&
BEAGHELREMNB) R_T_=F
+ZA=+—H RKEF=ZFZEXK
# AN E#5,413,0007 0 B H - LA &
LA ARES1,166,0007T AR =F
NEg RN_ZTE-_=F+-_A=+—
H RZESEMEERAN 2 ERF X
NFEF2%E30% (ZE-__F: &7
F2%ZE30% ) o

WE R AL B RO ERA T
—Eo=FEH
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z_—ZT_-=F+_-H=

30. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

t+—HILFE

30. JERE BT & BY

2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMFT ARETT

Cost: B
At 1 January n—HA—H 48,302 48,302
Additions =Byl 770 -
At 31 December Rt+t=-—HA=+—8H 49,072 48,302
Accumulated Amortisation: RETHEEGH
At 1 January w—HA—H 28,535 26,285
Amortisation for the year R 5 3,567 2,250
At 31 December Rt+t—_HA=+—H 32,102 28,535
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 December R+=—BA=+—8H 16,970 19,767
Analysed for reporting purposes: REREMDTET :
Classified in DEE
— current liabilities —-nEaE 2,200 2,237
— non-current liabilities —ERBAEE 14,770 17,530
16,970 19,767

The Group received government grants for the Group's
facilities for development and research of its products,
and for enhancing the Group’s production facilities. The
amounts are deferred and amortised over the estimated
useful lives of the respective assets.

1 38 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

SHARE CAPITAL 31. B
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T AREETF T
Authorised, issued and fully paid: EE - CRITRBZRN:
198,860,000 (2022: 198,860,000) 198,860,000/%
domestic shares of RMB0.10 each (ZE -
198,860,000/% )
FEEBEARE0.107T
< NERKR 19,886 19,886
110,000,000 (2022: 110,000,000) H 110,000,0000%
shares of RMBO0.10 each (ZE -
110,000,000/ )
FEEBEARE0.107T
2 HA% 11,000 11,000
30,886 30,886

Notes:

There were no changes in the Company’s share capital during
the years ended 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

Except for the currency in which dividends are paid and the
restrictions as to whether the shareholders can be the PRC
investors or foreign investors, domestic shares and H shares rank

pari passu with each other.

RESERVES
(@) Group
(i) Capital surplus

32.

The amounts of the Group’'s reserves and
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

i

REBEE—Z-_=F+-A=+—HK=Z
T FE+-A=+—BILEE ARFZ
PR ) o

B AR EEEHEARKREZEAAZS
BREELIEREENRBISN RER
FMHB I Z B R F L o

&
(a) &x~%H
(i) BXEE

ERGABEakEMER
W R AR R A
KAZS

WA RBMAEEMROBRD A
SRR
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

32. RESERVES (continued) 32. RB (&)
(a) Group (continued) (a) &&EE(£&)
(ii) Statutory surplus reserve (i) EEBERHE
The Company’s articles of association require the RAFAEBERAAR
appropriation of 10% of the Company’s profit EBERERBADRIRN
after tax each year to the statutory surplus reserve 185 F 2 10% 2 /5 E & 8
until the balance reaches 50% of the Company’s il BERETRBHEELS
registered capital. According to the provisions of FRIZR AR B FEMRA 2
the Company’s articles of association, in normal 50% - IRIEARAEBE
circumstances, the statutory surplus reserve shall EHAFETE REFBR
only be used for making up losses, capitalisation T EERERFEEETAR
into share capital and expansion of the Company’s WMAEEE BRRAREKR
production and operations. For the capitalisation RRB 2 EERKEE - #%
of the statutory surplus reserve into share capital, EABBEENM BRAR
the remaining amount of such reserve shall not be - BRRESRBENED
less than 25% of the registered capital. R AR ZAR25% °
(b) Company (b) &2QF
Statutory
Capital surplus Other Accumulated
surplus reserve reserve losses Total
EABH LERHREE  HtRE  RHEE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETRT
(Restated) (Restated)
(ms5))  (FE3))
At 1 January 2022 RZE-—F—-H—-H 18,561 11,853 981 (174,664) (143,269)
Loss for the year ERNER - - - 6,981 6,981
Fair value gain arising from RRESE S DT EYE
shareholder’s loan - - 4,076 - 4,076
Transferred from other reserve Bt HBERE 251 ER
to accumulated losses - - (981) 981 -
At 31 December 2022 and i —
1 January 2023 +ZA=+-8K
—E-=F-f-H 18,561 11,853 4,076 (166,702) (132,212)
Loss for the year ERER - - - (10,395) (10,395)
At 31 December 2023 RZZZ=F
+-A=+-H 18,561 11,853 4,076 (177,097) (142,607)

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #BZE_-_FT_-=#+_-H=+—HILFZF

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

33. GEBRERERMEE

Changes in liabilities arising from financing MEITHELECEEZED
activities
The following table shows the Group’s changes in TRIWTAFENASERETHE
liabilities arising from financing activities during the year: ErBBEZEE:
Interest
payable
(included
in accruals Amounts Bank and
and other due to other
payables)  shareholders  borrowings Total
ERFIE (BT A
JERT AR
HEMAHE) EBARRRE RORELEE a8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREFTT  AREFTT AR
At 1 January 2022 RZE--_%#—-f—H - 22,666 93,708 116,374
Financing cash inflows RERERA - 1,150 - 1,150
Financing cash outflows BERE TN (58) (170) (837) (1,065)
Non-cash changes #ReE
- Fair value gain on other borrowings -EfER s AT ERS - - (10,184) (10,184)
- Fair value gain arising from shareholder's — B EHE £ 2 A FEME
loans - (4,076) - (4,076)
- Interest charges -NEERA 58 1314 6,921 8,293
— Waiver of interests payable -SRERTIE - - (22,647) (22,647)
- Interest payable transferred from other  — B E B FIEEE 7 e
payables HME - - 1,636 1,636
At 31 December 2022 and R-B--%+-A=+-HK
1 January 2023 R=-B-=%-8-H - 20,884 68,597 89,481
Financing cash inflows RERERA - 2,175 481 2,656
Financing cash outflows AERLRE - (1,140) (5.728) (6,868)
Non-cash changes FRLEH
- Interest charges -FISER - 1,494 7,438 8,932
At 31 December 2023 R=BZ=#+ZB=1-H - 23,413 70,788 94,201

WA RBMAEEMROBRD A
SRR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZ—-FE=-=F+=-A=1+—HIFE

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

35.

36.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group and the Company
did not have any significant contingent liabilities (2022:
Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’'s capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

34. AREE

35.

R-ZE-_=F+-_A=+—H0 K&
B RANRWEARMNEKRKABE

(ZE=—F:4E)-
BAREH

AEBNHREHROEARENT -

2023 2022
—E-= —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBF T
Contracted contribution to associates HEENRITEEI AL E
(note 20) (Ktzz20) 49 49
LITIGATIONS 36. FFFA

During the year, the Company received certain
judgements issued by PRC courts regarding the litigations
lodged by purchase suppliers, construction contractors
and former employees of the Group which resulted in
the legal claims payable amounted to approximately
RMB7,223,000 (2022: RMB2,963,000) recognised in the
consolidated financial statements, details of which are set
out in note 26.

Apart from the above, management of the Company is
not aware of any outstanding litigations at the end of the
reporting period and up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements which would result in
material adverse impact on the financial position of the
Group.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBERRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE_—ZFE_-=#F+_-HA=+—HIFFZF

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability
to control, jointly control or exert significant influence
over the other party in making financial or operational
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they
are subject to common control or joint control. Related
parties may be individuals or other entities.

(a)

(b)

(c)

Key management compensation

The compensation of key management personnel
is disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Loans from a director and the holding
company of shareholder

The director of the Company, Mr. Yuen Guoliang,
and the holding company of a substantial
shareholder of the Company made loans to the
Group and the balances of the loans payable
to the director and the holding company
remained outstanding at 31 December 2023 are
approximately RMB331,000 (2022: RMB320,000)
and RMB7,858,000 (2022: RMB6,995,000)
respectively. Details of the loans payable to
the director and the holding company of the
shareholder are set out in note 29(ii(a)) and note
29(ii(b)).

Sales of goods to related parties

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group made sales of goods at the sale prices of
approximately RMB1,178,000 (2022: RMB415,000)
to two (2022: one) related party which is
beneficially owned by Mr. Wu Bo, the Company’s
director. At the end of the reporting period, the
sales to one of these parties to the extent of
approximately RMB854,000 (2022: RMB910,000)
remained outstanding which was included in the
Group's trade receivables.

37. BEALRS

FEANTIRBRENETHRELRR
FEd s KRZES S-S -7
?"*Ti%?k?/aﬁﬂ’]/\:t el 152 35 52 4k
R4 Fl S B & 12 ) R TR AR % A R
BoREALA REASEMER-

(a) TEEEABE RN
FTEEREAS ZHRNEENGE
B R s R M 5E14 -

(b) RE—BREBUR—BREZ
ERATZER
RAREBEERBREEURAEAR
Al —BEBRE IR AR AIA
EEELEZF UER-ZT-=
F+-_A=+—HIKXEEZRE
H;i%%&# ARz EFREREE

o Bl A% AR ¥331,0000T (=
=z - —F: AR®320,0007T) &
AR#7,858,000 (Z &= =
F: AR #6,995,0007T) © fE T
EERRRIIERRABZERZ
1B Y R M 5E29(i(a)) K B 7
29(ii(b)) °

() MEBEEALHEHESER
REE-_FE-_=F+=-_A=+—
HIEFE AEBEIZKHEEEBLY
AR#1,178,000c (=T = =
F: AR #415,0007T) A i £
(ZEZ=F:—R)@EAT
(AARRIEBTR B EEESH
B)HEER - NBREHR Y
—ZZEHBALTZHEESSE
AR 854,000t (T - =
F:AR®910,0007T) 1A X
1 BEFAREEZEKE SR

e
AN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. At =ZA=1+—HBZX23H

THE COMPANY AS AT 31 DECEMBER B 35 AR O 3/
2023 2022
—_E-= —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ Tt ARMTFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSET kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - -BENLEE 123,301 114,967
Right-of-use assets EREEE 9,072 9,365
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UG B B R Bl FRIE 9 -
132,382 124,332
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 13,488 10,148
Trade receivables JEUE 5 BRI 16,975 7,736
Prepayments, deposits and other TN e REA B RIE
receivables 8,055 7,788
Bank and cash balances R1TNMIB & 4 158 268
38,676 25,940
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables FERTE 5 BRK 8,209 8,585
Accruals and other payables J& &t TR I B EL A FE 1 FRIE 153,520 123,300
Contract liabilities S oN=Kr 5,348 5,928
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE -} Bt BB A B FR I8 4,862 4,857
Amount due to shareholders JFE 1~ I% 3R 5k T8 9,826 9,062
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 11,433 15,732
Deferred government grants EET T & B 2,200 2,237
195,398 169,701
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEFE (156,722) (143,761)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Amount due to shareholders FES AR B TR IE 13,587 11,822
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 59,024 52,545
Deferred government grants BRI BUT & B 14,770 17,530
87,381 81,897
NET LIABILITIES EEFE (111,721) (101,326)
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital A& 2N 30,886 30,886
Reserves Gk (142,607) (132,212)
TOTAL DEFICIT ON EQUITY RRBMER (111,721) (101,326)

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2023




39.

40.

41.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD
Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the

consolidated financial statements, there was no material
events that after the report period to be disclosed.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to
conform to the current year's presentation.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

These consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 30
April 2024.

39.

40.

41.

mEMBERRWE

ECE_-HFAf-_A=+—HILFE

BEMRER

B 7 A B 765 S R B A P9 EL A 3 5 P Y
BEN WEARE 2 REHEREKR
FHe

EEBHF
ETHBRBFEENHRUFARF
Ez25

REUBRRZHE

AZEGAVBHRRN T _MFMOA
—THHRESSHAERRETE-

WA RBMAEEMROBRD A
SRR
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EIFEMBRE

The following is a summary of the audited results and of the TR AEREHEE S _=F+_H4
assets and liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31 —t+HIhHEAFE  EESREENEE
December 2023. EEN=E

\\\\\\

Year ended 31 December

BEEt-RA=t—-HLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-= —ET-= T ZT-TF —T-AF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFTT ARETIT AREFT ARETIL
(Restated) (Restated)
(&&5)) (KEH)

RESULTS e
Revenue g 26,717 15,535 18,417 8,061 39,609
Operating (loss)/profit e (B18),/aF (1,443) 15,500 (32,051) (18,821) 1,056
Finance costs H%E R (8,932) (8,293) (8,406) (9,096) (9,189)
(Loss)/profit before tax BRBAT (E518) & (10,375) 7,207 (40,457) (27,917) (8,133)
Income tax expenses PSR = - - - - (1)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(EEB)/&EH (10,375) 7,207 (40,457) (27,917) (8,134)
Attributable to: AT FE(h
Owners of the Company ~ AREHEE A (10,392) 7,219 (40,390) (27,911) (8,120)
Non-controlling interests ~ FEiR i %S 17 (12) (67) (6) (14)

(10,375) 7,207 (40,457) (27,917) (8,134)

At 31 December

BW+=B=+—-8H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—g=-= —E-—— —TE-—F —ZT-TFE —T—HE

RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETT AREFTT ARETT ARETT

(Restated)
(=&5)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ZEREE
Total assets EERE 171,670 150,648 148,505 173,752 162,034
Total liabilities EEEE 279,971 (248,574) (262,925) (247,719) (208,084)
Non-controlling interests ~ JE¥R A% % 111 128 116 49 43
Total deficit attributable to ~ ANAFHEH AFELS
owners of the Company AL AT (108,190) (97,798)  (114,304) (73,918) (46,007)

1 46 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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